This Final Official Statement is dated October 25, 2018

In the opinion of Ice Miller LLP, Indianapolis, Indiana ("Bond Counsel") under existing laws, regulations, judicial decisions and rulings, interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date hereof (the "Code"), for federal income tax purposes and is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax, although Bond Counsel observes that it is included in adjusted current earnings in calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income for taxable years that begin prior to January 1, 2018. Such exclusion is conditioned on continuing compliance with the Tax Covenants (as hereinafter defined). In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing laws, regulations, judicial decisions and rulings, interest on the Bonds is exempt from income taxation in the State of Indiana. The Bonds have been designated qualified tax-exempt obligations pursuant to Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. See "TAX MATTERS" herein.

\$2,200,000 MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY Martinsville, Indiana GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF 2018

Original Date: Date of Delivery (November 15, 2018)

Due: January 15 and July 15, as shown below

Morgan County Public Library, Morgan County, Indiana (the "Library") is issuing \$2,200,000 of General Obligation Bonds of 2018 (the "Bonds") for the purpose of paying the costs of the renovation of and improvements to the Main Library Branch, including the construction of an addition and site work in the Library district (the "Project"), and to pay issuance costs.

The Bonds will be issued as provided in the Bond Resolution adopted by the Board of Trustees on August 27, 2018, as supplemented on September 24, 2018 (the "Bond Resolution" or "Resolution"). The Bonds are payable from ad valorem property taxes levied on all taxable property within the Library as more fully described in this Official Statement. See "CIRCUIT BREAKER TAX CREDIT" herein and "PROCEDURES FOR PROPERTY ASSESSMENT, TAX LEVY, AND COLLECTION" herein. The total indebtedness of the Library subject to the constitutional debt limit, including the Bonds, amounts to less than two percent of one-third of the net assessed valuation of the Library, as required by the constitution of the State of Indiana. The Bonds will be issued only as fully registered bonds, and when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"). Purchases of beneficial interests in the Bonds will be made in book-entry-only form in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Purchasers of beneficial interests in the Bonds (the "Beneficial Owners") will not receive physical delivery of certificates representing their interests in the Bonds. Interest on the Bonds will be payable semiannually on January 15 and July 15 of each year, beginning July 15, 2019. Principal and interest will be disbursed on behalf of the Library by U.S. Bank National Association, in Indianapolis, Indiana (the "Registrar" and "Paying Agent"). Interest on the Bonds will be paid by check, mailed one business day prior to the interest payment date or by wire transfer to depositories on the interest payment date. The principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the designated corporate trust office of the Paying Agent or by wire transfer to depositories who present the bonds at least two business days prior to the payment date. Interest on, together with the principal of, the Bonds will be paid directly to DTC by the Paying Agent so long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the Bonds. The final disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds will be the responsibility of the DTC Participants and the Indirect Participants. See "BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM". The Bonds will be subject to optional redemption prior to maturity, as more fully described herein. The Bonds issued as "Term Bonds" are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption as more fully described herein.



ROSS, SINCLAIRE & ASSOCIATES, LLC

NORTHLAND

Amuni

MATURITY SCHEDULE (Base CUSIP* 617221)

<u>Maturity</u>	Principal	Interest <u>Rate</u>	Yield	<u>CUSIP</u>	Maturity	Principal	Interest <u>Rate</u>	Yield	<u>CUSIP</u>
July 15, 2019	\$60,000	3.00%	2.05%	BQ8	January 15, 2023	\$85,000	3.00%	2.45%	BX3
January 15, 2020	75,000	3.00%	2.15%	BR6	July 15, 2023	85,000	3.00%	2.50%	BY1
July 15, 2020	75,000	3.00%	2.20%	BS4	January 15, 2024	90,000	3.00%	2.60%	BZ8
January 15, 2021	80,000	3.00%	2.22%	BT2	July 15, 2024	90,000	3.00%	2.65%	CA2
July 15, 2021	80,000	3.00%	2.25%	BU9	January 15, 2025	90,000	3.00%	2.70%	CB0
January 15, 2022	80,000	3.00%	2.33%	BV7	July 15, 2025	95,000	3.00%	2.80%	CC8
July 15, 2022	85,000	3.00%	2.37%	BW5	-				

Term Bonds

\$190,000 of Term Bonds at 3.00% due July 15, 2026, Yield 2.90%, CUSIP CE4 \$200,000 of Term Bonds at 3.00% due July 15, 2027, Yield 3.00%, CUSIP CG9 \$210,000 of Term Bonds at 3.10% due July 15, 2028, Yield 3.10%, CUSIP CJ3 \$220,000 of Term Bonds at 3.25% due July 15, 2029, Yield 3.20%, CUSIP CL8 \$310,000 of Term Bonds at 3.25% due January 15, 2031, Yield 3.30%, CUSIP CP9

*Copyright 2018 CUSIP Global Services. CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP Global Services, managed on behalf of the American Bankers Association by S&P Global Marketing Intelligence.

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of this issue. Investors must read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.

The Bonds are being offered for delivery when, as and if issued and received by the Underwriter (hereinafter defined) and subject to the approval of legality by Ice Miller LLP, Indianapolis, Indiana, Bond Counsel. Certain legal matters will be passed on by Mr. James K. Wisco, Foley Peden & Wisco, P.A., as Attorney for the Library. The Bonds are expected to be available for delivery to DTC, in New York, New York on November 15, 2018.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS OFFERED HEREBY AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET, AND SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Library to give any information or to make any representations, other than those contained in this Official Statement, and if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Library. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of the securities described herein by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. The information set forth herein has been obtained from the Library and other sources which are believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness. The information and expressions of opinions herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale of the securities described herein shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Library since the date of delivery of the securities described herein to the initial purchaser thereof. However, upon delivery of the securities, the Library will provide a certificate stating there have been no material changes in the information contained in the Final Official Statement, since its delivery.

REFERENCES TO WEB SITE ADDRESSES PRESENTED HEREIN ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND MAY BE IN THE FORM OF A HYPERLINK SOLELY FOR THE READER'S CONVENIENCE. UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE, SUCH WEB SITES AND THE INFORMATION OR LINKS CONTAINED THEREIN ARE NOT INCORPORATED INTO, AND ARE NOT PART OF, THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT FOR THE PURPOSES OF, AND AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED IN, SEC RULE 15C2-12.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Pa	ge	(s)
		~ ~

Introduction to the Official Statement	1
The Project	
Project Description	3
Estimated Project Costs and Funding	3
Schedule of Amortization of \$2,200,000 Principal Amount of	
General Obligation Bonds of 2018	4
Securities Being Offered	
Authorization and Approval Process	4
Security and Sources of Payment	
Intercept Program	5
Investment of Funds	5
The Bonds	
Interest Calculation	5
Redemption Provisions	5
Book-Entry-Only System	7
Procedures for Property Assessment, Tax Levy and Collection	9
Circuit Breaker Tax Credit	11
Continuing Disclosure	12
Bond Rating	13
Underwriting	13
Municipal Advisor	13
Proposed Legislation	14
Tax Matters	15
Original Issue Discount	15
Amortizable Bond Premium	16
Litigation	17
Certain Legal Matters	17
Legal Opinions and Enforceability of Remedies	17

- Appendices: A General Information

- B Bond Resolution
 C Form of Legal Opinion
 D Form of Master Continuing Disclosure Undertaking

(This page intentionally left blank.)

PROJECT PERSONNEL

Names and positions of officials and others who have taken part in the planning of the project and this bond issue are:

Board of Trustees

Constance Feagans, President Debra Hendrickson, Vice President Sharon Goins, Secretary Judy Rumbaugh, Treasurer Mary Krutulis Thierry Liberge Brenda Zody

Library Director

Krista Ledbetter

Assistant Director

Jennifer McKinley

Library Attorney

James K. Wisco Foley Pedan & Wisco P.A. 60 East Morgan Street P.O. Box 1435 Martinsville, Indiana 46151

Architect

Kevin Montgomery krM Architecture 212 West 10th Street, Suite A-300 Indianapolis, Indiana 46202

Bond Counsel

Jane N. Herndon, Esq. Kristin McClellan, Esq. Ice Miller LLP One American Square, Suite 2900 Indianapolis, Indiana 46282

Municipal Advisor

Belvia B. Gray H.J. Umbaugh & Associates Certified Public Accountants, LLP 8365 Keystone Crossing, Suite 300 Indianapolis, Indiana 46240

(This page intentionally left blank.)

This introduction to the Official Statement contains certain information for quick reference only. Investors must read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.

FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT

\$2,200,000

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY Martinsville, Indiana GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF 2018

INTRODUCTION TO THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT

The Morgan County Public Library, Morgan County, Indiana (the "Library") is issuing \$2,200,000 of General Obligation Bonds of 2018 (the "Bonds").

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT

The Bonds are the general obligation of the Library payable from ad valorem property taxes to be levied on all taxable property within the Library. See "CIRCUIT BREAKER TAX CREDIT" herein.

CIRCUIT BREAKER TAX CREDIT

Indiana Code Title 6, Article 1.1, Chapter 20.6 provides taxpayers with a tax credit for all property taxes in an amount that exceeds the gross assessed value of real and personal property eligible for the credit ("Circuit Breaker Tax Credit"). If applicable, the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit will result in a reduction of property tax collections for each political subdivision in which the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit is applied. The legislation requires local governments to fund their debt service obligations regardless of any property tax revenue shortfalls due to the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. The State of Indiana (the "State") may intercept funds to pay debt service. (*See* "Intercept Program" and "Circuit Breaker Tax Credit").

PURPOSE

The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of paying the costs of the renovation of and improvements to the Main Library Branch, including the construction of an addition and site work in the Library district (the "Project"), and to pay issuance expenses. Funding for the Project will be provided from certain funds on hand, proceeds of the Bonds and interest earnings during construction.

REDEMPTION PROVISIONS

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption beginning January 15, 2029 as more fully described herein. The Bonds issued as Term Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption as more fully described herein.

DENOMINATIONS

The Bonds are being issued in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

REGISTRATION AND EXCHANGE FEATURES

Each registered Bond shall be transferable or exchangeable only on such record at the designated corporate trust office of the Registrar and Paying Agent, U.S. Bank National Association, at the written request of the registered owner thereof or his/her attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender thereof, together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the registered owner or his/her duly authorized attorney. A further description of the registration and exchange features of the Bonds can be found in the Bond Resolution.

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

The Bonds shall initially be issued and held in book-entry form on the books of the central depository system. The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee). One fully registered Bond certificate will be issued for the Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. The Library and the Registrar and Paying Agent may deem and treat the Clearing Agency (Cede & Co.) as the absolute owner and holder of such Bond for all purposes including, without limitation, the receiving of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds, the receiving of notice and the giving of consent. Interest payable July 15, 2019, and semiannually thereafter, will be paid by check mailed one business day prior to the interest payment date to the registered owner or by wire transfer on the interest payment date to the registered owner or by wire transfer on the interest payment date to the depository by whether the interest payment date to the registered owner or by wire transfer on the interest payment date to the registered owner or by wire transfer on the interest payment date to the depository shown as the registered owner (Refer to "Book-Entry-Only System" herein).

PROVISIONS FOR PAYMENT

The principal on the Bonds shall be payable at the designated corporate trust office of the Registrar and Paying Agent, or by wire transfer to DTC or any successor depository. All payments of interest on the Bonds shall be paid by check, mailed one business day prior to the interest payment date to the registered owners as the names appear as of the fifteenth day immediately preceding the interest payment date and at the addresses as they appear on the registration books kept by the Registrar or at such other address as is provided to the Registrar or by wire transfer to DTC or any successor depository. If payment of principal or interest is made to DTC or any successor depository, payment shall be made by wire transfer on the payment date in same-day funds. If the payment date occurs on a date when financial institutions are not open for business, the wire transfer shall be made on the next succeeding business day. The Paying Agent shall be instructed to wire transfer payments by 1:00 p.m. (New York City time) so such payments are received at the depository by 2:30 p.m. (New York City time). Payments on the Bonds shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America, which, on the date of such payment, shall be legal tender.

So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the Bonds, principal and interest on the Bonds will be paid directly to DTC by the Paying Agent. (The final disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds will be the responsibility of the DTC Participants and Indirect Participants, as defined and more fully described herein.)

NOTICES

Notice of redemption shall be mailed to the registered owners of all Bonds, not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption.

TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Ice Miller LLP, Indianapolis, Indiana ("Bond Counsel") under existing laws, regulations, judicial decisions and rulings, interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date hereof (the "Code"), for federal income tax purposes and is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax, although Bond Counsel observes that it is included in adjusted current earnings in calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income for taxable years that begin prior to January 1, 2018. Such exclusion is conditioned on continuing compliance with the Tax Covenants (as hereinafter defined). In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing laws, regulations, judicial decisions and rulings, interest on the Bonds is exempt from income taxation in the State of Indiana. The Bonds have been designated qualified tax-exempt obligations pursuant to Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. See "TAX MATTERS" herein.

MISCELLANEOUS

The information contained in this Official Statement has been compiled from Library officials and other sources deemed to be reliable, and while not guaranteed as to completeness or accuracy, it is believed to be correct as of this date. However, the Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to change.

The references, excerpts and summaries of all documents referred to herein do not purport to be complete statements of the provisions of such documents, and reference is directed to all such documents for full and complete statements of all matters of fact relating to the Bonds, the security for the payment of the Bonds and the rights and obligations of the owners thereof. Additional information may be requested from the Library Director, Morgan County Public Library, 110 South Jefferson Street, Martinsville, Indiana 46151, phone (765) 342-3451.

Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or of estimates, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is made that any of the estimates will be realized. Neither this Official Statement nor any statement which may have been made verbally or in writing is to be construed as a contract with the owners of the Bonds.

THE PROJECT

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of paying the costs of the renovation of and improvements to the Main Library Branch, including the construction of an addition and site work in the Library district, and to pay issuance expenses. Funding for the Project will be provided from certain funds on hand, proceeds of the Bonds and interest earnings during construction.

ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS AND FUNDING

Estimated Project Costs

Estimated Proceeds Available for Project Net Underwriter's Discount (1) Estimated Cost of Issuance (2)	\$4,314,648.90 10,351.10 75,000.00
Total Estimated Project Costs	\$4,400,000.00
Estimated Project Funding	
General Obligation Bonds of 2018 Funds on Hand (3)	\$2,200,000.00 2,200,000.00
Total Estimated Project Funding	\$4,400,000.00

- (1) Represents original issue premium of \$18,843.90 less the Underwriter's discount of \$29,195.00.
- (2) Includes allowances for local counsel, bond counsel, municipal advisor, registrar and paying agent, rating, printing expenses, and other miscellaneous fees.
- (3) Consists of funds from the Library's Library Improvement Reserve Fund and Rainy Day Fund that the Library plans to utilize to complete the Project.

SCHEDULE OF AMORTIZATION OF \$2,200,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF **GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF 2018**

Payment Date	Principal <u>Outstanding</u> (In Thous	<u>Principal</u> sands)	Interest <u>Rates</u> (%)	Interest	Total	Budget Year <u>Total</u>
07/15/2019	\$2,200	\$60	3.00	\$45,023.33	\$105,023.33	
01/15/2020	2,140	75	3.00	32,867.50	107,867.50	\$212,890.83
07/15/2020	2,065	75	3.00	31,742.50	106,742.50	
01/15/2021	1,990	80	3.00	30,617.50	110,617.50	217,360.00
07/15/2021	1,910	80	3.00	29,417.50	109,417.50	
01/15/2022	1,830	80	3.00	28,217.50	108,217.50	217,635.00
07/15/2022	1,750	85	3.00	27,017.50	112,017.50	
01/15/2023	1,665	85	3.00	25,742.50	110,742.50	222,760.00
07/15/2023	1,580	85	3.00	24,467.50	109,467.50	
01/15/2024	1,495	90	3.00	23,192.50	113,192.50	222,660.00
07/15/2024	1,405	90	3.00	21,842.50	111,842.50	
01/15/2025	1,315	90	3.00	20,492.50	110,492.50	222,335.00
07/15/2025	1,225	95	3.00	19,142.50	114,142.50	
01/15/2026	1,130	`	1) 3.00	17,717.50	112,717.50	226,860.00
07/15/2026	1,035	95 (1) 3.00	16,292.50	111,292.50	
01/15/2027	940	100 (2) 3.00	14,867.50	114,867.50	226,160.00
07/15/2027	840	100 (2) 3.00	13,367.50	113,367.50	
01/15/2028	740		3) 3.10	11,867.50	116,867.50	230,235.00
07/15/2028	635	(3) 3.10	10,240.00	115,240.00	
01/15/2029	530	110 (4) 3.25	8,612.50	118,612.50	233,852.50
07/15/2029	420	110 (4) 3.25	6,825.00	116,825.00	
01/15/2030	310	115 (5) 3.25	5,037.50	120,037.50	236,862.50
07/15/2030	195	95 (5) 3.25	3,168.75	98,168.75	
01/15/2031	100	<u> 100 (</u>	5) 3.25	1,625.00	101,625.00	199,793.75
Totals		<u>\$2,200</u>		<u>\$469,404.58</u>	<u>\$2,669,404.58</u>	<u>\$2,669,404.58</u>

(1) \$190,000 of Term Bonds due July 15, 2026.

(4) \$220,000 of Term Bonds due July 15, 2029.

(5) \$310,000 of Term Bonds due January 15, 2031.

(3) \$210,000 of Term Bonds due July 15, 2028.

(2) \$200,000 of Term Bonds due July 15, 2027.

SECURITIES BEING OFFERED

AUTHORIZATION AND APPROVAL PROCESS

The Bonds are to be issued under the authority of Indiana law, including, without limitation, Indiana Code Title 36, Article 12, Chapter 3, as in effect on the date of delivery of the Bonds and pursuant to the Bond Resolution (Appendix B) adopted by the Board of Trustees on August 27, 2018 as supplemented on September 24, 2018.

Pursuant to Indiana Code 6-1.1-20, with certain exceptions listed below, when property taxes are pledged to the repayment of bonds or leases to finance a project, a determination must be made as to whether the project is a "controlled project". Projects classified as controlled projects are subject to certain public approval procedures. A controlled project is one that is financed by a bond or lease, is payable by property taxes and costs more than the lesser of:

- (1) Depending on the date of adoption of the preliminary determination ordinance or resolution:
 - If adopted prior to January 1, 2018, \$2 million; (a)
 - If adopted after December 31, 2017, but before January 1, 2019, \$5 million; (b)

- (c) If adopted after December 31, 2018, an amount equal to the assessed value growth quotient (as determined by the DLGF) multiplied by the amount determined under this clause for the preceding calendar year;
- (2) An amount equal to:
 - (a) At least 1% of gross assessed value, if that total gross assessed value is more than \$100 million; or
 - (b) \$1 million if the gross assessed value is not more than \$100 million.

The main exceptions for a project being classified as a controlled project when there are property taxes being pledged to the repayment of the bonds or leases, and the project meets the criteria set forth in (1)-(2) above are when (a) property taxes are used only as a back-up to enhance credit, (b) a project is being refinanced to generate taxpayer savings, (c) the project is mandated by federal law, or (d) the project is in response to a natural disaster, emergency or accident which is approved by the Library making it unavailable for its intended use.

The Project being funded by the Bonds is considered a non-controlled project, and the issuance of the Bonds was able to continue without additional approval procedures.

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT

The Bonds are the general obligation of the Library payable from ad valorem property taxes to be levied on all taxable property within the Library.

The total bonded indebtedness of the Library subject to the constitutional debt limit, including the Bonds, amounts to less than two percent of one-third of the net assessed valuation of the Library as required by the constitution of the State of Indiana.

INTERCEPT PROGRAM

In 2008, the Indiana General Assembly enacted legislation (Indiana Code Title 6, Article 1.1, Chapter 20.6, Section 10) to ensure that shortfalls in property tax receipts due to the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit do not affect the ability of a political subdivision to make payments on any existing debt service and lease rental obligations. The legislation requires that local governments fund their debt service and lease rental obligations regardless of property tax shortfalls due to the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. If a political subdivision fails to make debt service or lease rental payments, the State Treasurer, upon being notified of the failure, shall pay the unpaid debt service or lease rental payments that are due from funds that are held by the State (including among others, income tax distributions and motor vehicle highway distributions) that would otherwise be available for distribution to the political subdivision to ensure that Debt Service Obligations (as hereinafter defined) are made when due.

INVESTMENT OF FUNDS

The proceeds of this issue are to be invested in accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana relating to the depositing, holding, securing or investing of public funds, including particularly Indiana Code 5-13, and the acts amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto. The Library shall direct the investment of Bond proceeds.

THE BONDS

INTEREST CALCULATION

Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.

REDEMPTION PROVISIONS

Optional Redemption:

The Bonds maturing on or after July 15, 2029 are redeemable prior to maturity at the option of the Library in whole or in part in any order of maturity as determined by the Library and by lot within maturities, on any date not earlier than January 15, 2029, at face value plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption and without any redemption premium.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption:

The Bonds maturing on July 15 in the years 2026 through and including 2029 and on January 15, 2031 (collectively, the "Term Bonds") are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest on the dates and in the amounts in accordance with the following schedules:

Term Bond due Ju	ly 15, 2026	Term Bond due July	Term Bond due July 15, 2027		
Date	Amount	Date	Amount		
01/15/26 07/15/26 Final maturity	\$95,000 	01/15/27 07/15/27 Final maturity	\$100,000 <u>100,000</u>		
Total	<u>\$190,000</u>	Total	<u>\$200,000</u>		
Term Bond due Ju	ly 15, 2028	Term Bond due July	5, 2029		
Date	Amount	Date	<u>Amount</u>		
01/15/28 07/15/28 Final maturity	\$105,000 <u>105,000</u>	01/15/29 07/15/29 Final maturity	\$110,000 <u>110,000</u>		
Total	<u>\$210,000</u>	Total	<u>\$220,000</u>		
<u>Term Bond due Janu</u> <u>Date</u> 01/15/30 07/15/30 01/15/31 Final maturity		<u>Amount</u> \$115,000 95,000 100,000			
	-				

The Paying Agent shall credit against the mandatory sinking fund requirement for the Term Bonds, and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation, in the order determined by the Library, any Term Bonds which have previously been redeemed (otherwise than as a result of a previous mandatory redemption requirement) or delivered to the Paying Agent for cancellation or purchased for cancellation by the Paying Agent and not theretofore applied as a credit against any redemption obligation. Each Term Bond so delivered or canceled shall be credited by the Paying Agent at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the mandatory sinking fund obligation on such mandatory redemption date, and any excess of such amount shall be credited on future redemption obligations, and the principal amount of that Term Bond to be redeemed by operation of the mandatory sinking fund requirement shall be accordingly reduced; provided, however, the Paying Agent shall only credit such Term Bond to the extent received on or before 45 days preceding the applicable mandatory redemption date.

\$310,000

Total

If fewer than all the Bonds are called for redemption at one time, the Bonds shall be redeemed in order of maturity determined by the Library and by lot within maturity. Each \$5,000 principal amount shall be considered a separate Bond for purposes of optional and mandatory redemption. If some Bonds are to be redeemed by optional and mandatory sinking redemption on the same date, the Paying Agent shall select by lot the Bonds for optional redemption before selecting the Bonds by lot for the mandatory sinking fund redemption.

Notice of Redemption:

Notice of redemption shall be mailed to the registered owners of all Bonds to be redeemed at least 30 days but not more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for such redemption, unless notice if waived by the owner of the Bond or

Bonds redeemed. If any of the Bonds are so called for redemption, and payment therefore is made to the Paying Agent in accordance with the terms of the Bond Resolution, then such Bonds shall cease to bear interest from and after the date fixed for redemption in the call.

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

The Bonds will be available only in book-entry form in the principal amount of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. DTC will act as the initial securities depository for the Bonds. The ownership of one fully registered Bond for each maturity of the Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC.

SO LONG AS CEDE & CO, AS NOMINEE OF DTC, IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS, REFERENCES IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO THE REGISTERED OWNERS (OR THE OWNERS) WILL MEAN CEDE & CO. AND WILL <u>NOT</u> MEAN THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS.

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Bond will be issued for the Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of such issue/maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world's largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues and money market instruments from over 100 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has a S&P's Global Rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Library as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Payments of principal, interest and redemption amounts, if any, on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Library or the Paying Agent, on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC (nor its nominee), the Paying Agent, or the Library, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Library or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursements of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of DTC.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Library or the Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Library may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources that the Library believes to be reliable, but neither the Library nor the Underwriter takes any responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

In the event that the book-entry-only system is discontinued, the Paying Agent will provide for the registration of the Bonds in the name of the Beneficial Owners thereof. The Library, the Registrar, the Paying Agent and any other Fiduciary would treat the person in whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purposes of making and receiving payment of the principal thereof and interest thereon, and for all other purposes, and none of these parties would be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary.

Revision of Book-Entry-Only System:

In the event that either (1) the Library receives notice from DTC to the effect that DTC is unable or unwilling to discharge its responsibilities as a clearing agency for the Bonds or (2) the Library elects to discontinue its use of DTC as a clearing agency for the Bonds, then the Library and the Paying Agent will do or perform or cause to be done or performed all acts or things, not adverse to the rights of the holders of the Bonds, as are necessary or appropriate to discontinue use of DTC as a clearing agency for the Bonds and to transfer the ownership of each of the Bonds to such person or persons, including any other clearing agency, as the holder of such Bonds may direct in

accordance with the Bond Resolution. Any expenses of such a discontinuation and transfer, including any expenses of printing new certificates to evidence the Bonds will be paid by the Library.

PROCEDURES FOR PROPERTY ASSESSMENT, TAX LEVY AND COLLECTION

The debt service payments are payable from ad valorem property taxes required by law to be levied by or on behalf of the Library. Article 10, Section 1 of the Constitution of the State of Indiana ("Constitutional Provision") provides that, for property taxes first due and payable in 2012 and thereafter, the Indiana General Assembly shall, by law, limit a taxpayer's property tax liability to a specified percentage of the gross assessed value of the taxpayer's real and personal property. The Indiana General Assembly enacted legislation (Indiana Code Title 6, Article 1.1, Chapter 20.6), which implements the Constitutional Provision and provides taxpayers with a tax credit for all property taxes in an amount that exceeds a certain percentage of the gross assessed value of eligible property. *See* "CIRCUIT BREAKER TAX CREDIT" herein for further details on the levy and collection of property taxes.

Real and personal property in the State is assessed each year as of January 1. On or before August 1 of each year, the County Auditor must submit a certified statement of the assessed value of each taxing unit for the ensuing year to the Department of Local Government Finance ("DLGF"). The DLGF shall make the certified statement available on its gateway website located at <u>https://gateway.ifionline.org/</u> ("Gateway"). The County Auditor may submit an amended certified statement at any time before December 31 of the year preceding the budget year (as defined in IC 6-1.1-17-16(k)(2)), the date by which the DLGF must certify the taxing units' budgets.

The certified statement of assessed value is used when the governing body of a local taxing unit meets to establish its budget for the next fiscal year (January 1 through December 31) and to set tax rates and levies. In preparing the taxing unit's estimated budget, the governing body must consider the net property tax revenue that will be collected by the taxing unit during the ensuing year, after taking into account the DLGF's estimate of the amount by which the taxing unit's distribution of property taxes will be reduced by the application of the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit (as defined in the summary of "CIRCUIT BREAKER TAX CREDIT" herein), and after taking into account the DLGF's estimate of the maximum amount of net property tax revenue and miscellaneous revenue that the taxing unit will receive in the ensuing year. Before May 1 of each year after 2017, the fiscal officer of each political subdivision shall provide the DLGF with an estimate of the total amount of its debt service obligations (as defined in IC 6-1.1-20.6-9.8) that will be due in the last six months of the current year and in the ensuing year. Beginning in 2018, the DLGF shall provide to each political subdivision: (1) an estimate of the maximum property tax rate that may be imposed by the political subdivision for the ensuing year for each cumulative fund or other fund for which a maximum property tax rate is established by law; and (2) an estimate of property taxes payable for the ensuing year for debt service. Before August 1 of each year, the DLGF shall provide to each taxing unit (1) an estimate of the maximum amount of net property tax revenue and miscellaneous revenue that the unit will receive in the ensuing year if the unit's tax rates are imposed at the maximum allowable rate and levy under law and (2) an estimate of the amount by which the taxing unit's distribution of property taxes will be reduced due to the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. Beginning in 2018, the State Budget Agency must provide to the DLGF and the County Auditor an estimate of the certified local income tax distribution before June 1, and the DLGF must provide by July 1, the estimated amounts to be distributed at the taxing level to the County Auditor.

The taxing unit must submit the following information to the DLGF via Gateway: (i) its estimated budget; (ii) the estimated maximum permissible tax levy, as determined by the DLGF; (iii) the current and proposed tax levies of each fund; (iv) the estimated amount, determined by the DLGF, by which the taxing unit's property taxes may be reduced by the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit; (v) the amount of excess levy appeals to be requested, if any; and (vi) the time and place at which the taxing unit will conduct a public hearing related to the information submitted to Gateway. The public hearing must be conducted at least ten days prior to the date the governing body establishes the budget, tax rate and levy, which by statute must each be established no later than November 1.

The budget, tax levy and tax rate of each taxing unit are subject to review by the DLGF, and the DLGF shall certify the tax rates and tax levies for all funds of taxing units subject to the DLGF's review. The DLGF may not increase a taxing district's budget by fund, tax rate or tax levy to an amount which exceeds the amount originally fixed by the taxing unit unless the taxing unit meets all of the following: (i) the increase is requested in writing by the taxing unit; (ii) the requested increase is published on the DLGF's advertising internet website; and (iii) notice is given to the county fiscal body of the DLGF's correction.

The DLGF may not approve a levy for debt service by a library if: (i) there are no bonds of the library outstanding; and (ii) the library has enough legally available funds on hand to redeem all outstanding bonds payable from the particular debt service levy requested. However, the DLGF may increase the library's tax rate and levy if the tax rate and levy proposed by the library are not sufficient to make its debt service payments.

Taxing units have until December 31 of the calendar year immediately preceding the ensuing calendar year to file a levy shortfall appeal. Beginning with budget year 2019, the DLGF must complete its review and certification of budgets, tax rates and levies not later than December 31 of the year preceding the budget year, unless a taxing unit in the county issues debt after December 1 or intends to file a shortfall appeal under IC 6-1.1-18.5-16 in which case the DLGF must certify the budgets for the taxing units in the county by January 15 of the budget year.

On or before March 15, the County Auditor prepares the tax duplicate, which is a roll of property taxes payable in that year. The County Auditor publishes a notice of the tax rate in accordance with Indiana statutes. The County Treasurer mails tax statements at least 15 days prior to the date that the first installment is due (due dates may be delayed due to a general reassessment or other factors). Property taxes are due and payable to the County Treasurer in two installments on May 10 and November 10, unless the mailing of tax bills is delayed or a later due date is established by order of the DLGF. If an installment of property taxes is not completely paid on or before the due date, a penalty of 10% of the amount delinquent is added to the amount due; unless the installment is completely paid within thirty (30) days of the due date and the taxpayer is not liable for delinquent property taxes first due and payable in a previous year for the same parcel, the amount of the penalty is five percent (5%) of the amount of the delinquent taxes. On May 11 and November 11 of each year after one year of delinquency, an additional penalty equal to 10% of any taxes remaining unpaid is added. The penalties are imposed only on the principal amount of the delinquency. Property becomes subject to tax sale procedures after 15 months of delinquency. The County Auditor distributes property tax collections to the various taxing units on or about June 30 after the May 10 payment date and on or about December 31 after the November 10 payment date.

Pursuant to State law, personal property is assessed at its actual historical cost less depreciation, in accordance with 50 IAC 4.2, the DLGF's Rules for the Assessment of Tangible Personal Property. Effective January 1, 2016, state law annually exempts from property taxation new tangible business personal property with an acquisition cost of less than \$20,000. Pursuant to State law, real property is valued for assessment purposes at its "true tax value" as defined in the Real Property Assessment Rule, 50 IAC 2.4, the 2011 Real Property Assessment Manual ("Manual"), as incorporated into 50 IAC 2.4 and the 2011 Real Property Assessment Guidelines, Version A ("Guidelines"), as adopted by the DLGF. P.L. 204-2016, SEC. 3, enacted in 2016, retroactive to January 1, 2016, amends State law to provide that "true tax value" for real property does not mean the value of the property to the user and that true tax value shall be determined under the rules of the DLGF. As a result of P.L. 204-2016, the DLGF has begun the process of amending the Manual. In the case of agricultural land, true tax value shall be the value determined in accordance with the Guidelines and IC 6-1.1-4, as amended by P.L. 180-2016. Except for agricultural land, as discussed below, the Manual permits assessing officials in each county to choose any acceptable mass appraisal method to determine true tax value, taking into consideration the ease of administration and the uniformity of the assessments produced by that method. The Guidelines were adopted to provide assessing officials with an acceptable appraisal method, although the Manual makes it clear that assessing officials are free to select from any number of appraisal methods, provided that they produce "accurate and uniform values throughout the jurisdiction and across all classes of property". The Manual specifies the standards for accuracy and validation that the DLGF uses to determine the acceptability of any alternative appraisal method. "Net Assessed Value" or "Taxable Value" represents the "Gross Assessed Value" less certain deductions for mortgages, veterans, the aged, the blind, economic revitalization areas, resource recovery systems, rehabilitated residential property, solar energy systems, wind power devices, hydroelectric systems, geothermal devices and tax-exempt property. The "Net Assessed Value" or "Taxable Value" is the assessed value used to determine tax rates.

Changes in assessed values of real property occur periodically as a result of the county's reassessment plan, as well as when changes occur in the property value due to new construction or demolition of improvements. Before July 1, 2013, and before May 1 of every fourth year thereafter, each county assessor will prepare and submit to the DLGF a reassessment plan for the county. The DLGF must complete its review and approval of the reassessment plan before January 1 of the year following the year in which the reassessment plan is submitted by the county. The reassessment plan must divide all parcels of real property in the county into four (4) different groups of parcels. Each group of parcels must contain approximately twenty-five percent (25%) of the parcels within each class of real property in the county. All real property in each group of parcels shall be reassessed under the county's reassessment plan once during each four (4) year cycle. The reassessment of a group of parcels in a particular class of real

property shall begin on May 1 of a year, and must be completed on or before January 1 of the year after the year in which the reassessment of the group of parcels begins. For real property included in a group of parcels that is reassessed, the reassessment is the basis for taxes payable in the year following the year in which the reassessment is to be completed. The county may submit a reassessment plan that provides for reassessing more than twenty-five percent (25%) of all parcels of real property in the county in a particular year. A plan may provide that all parcels are to be reassessed in one (1) year. However, a plan must cover a four (4) year period. All real property in each group of parcels shall be reassessed under the county's current reassessment plan once during each reassessment cycle. The reassessment of the first group of parcels under a county's reassessment plan begins on May 1, 2018, and is to be completed on or before January 1, 2019. Since 2007, all real property assessments are revalued annually to reflect market value based on comparable sales data ("Trending"). When a change in assessed value occurs, a written notification is sent to the affected property owner. If the owner wishes to appeal this action, the owner may file a petition requesting a review of the action. This petition must be filed with the county assessor in which the property is located within 45 days after the written notification is given to the taxpayer or May 10 of that year, whichever is later. While the appeal is pending, the taxpayer may pay taxes based on the current year's tax rate and the previous or current year's assessed value.

Beginning in 2018, the County Auditor shall submit to the DLGF parcel level data of certified net assessed values as required by and according to a schedule provided by the DLGF.

CIRCUIT BREAKER TAX CREDIT

Description of Circuit Breaker:

Article 10, Section 1 of the Constitution of the State of Indiana (the "Constitutional Provision") provides that, for property taxes first due and payable in 2012 and thereafter, the Indiana General Assembly shall, by law, limit a taxpayer's property tax liability to a specified percentage of the gross assessed value of the taxpayer's real and personal property. Indiana Code § 6-1.1-20.6 (the "Statute") authorizes such limits in the form of a tax credit for all property taxes in an amount that exceeds the gross assessed value of real and personal property eligible for the credit (the "Circuit Breaker Tax Credit"). For property assessed as a homestead (as defined in Indiana Code § 6-1.1-12-37), the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit is equal to the amount by which the property taxes attributable to the homestead exceed 1% of the gross assessed value of the homestead. Property taxes attributable to 2% of the gross assessed value, property taxes attributable to other non-residential real property and personal property are limited to 3% of the gross assessed value. The Statute provides additional property tax limits for property taxes paid by certain senior citizens.

If applicable, the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit will result in a reduction of property tax collections for each political subdivision in which the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit is applied. Political subdivisions may not increase their property tax levy or borrow money to make up for any property tax revenue shortfall due to the application of the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit.

The Constitutional Provision excludes from the application of the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit property taxes first due and payable in 2012, and thereafter, that are imposed after being approved by the voters in a referendum. The Statute codifies this exception, providing that, with respect to property taxes first due and payable in 2012 and thereafter, property taxes imposed after being approved by the voters in a referendum will not be considered for purposes of calculating the limits to property tax liability under the provisions of the Statute. In accordance with the Constitutional Provision, the General Assembly has, in the Statute, designated Lake County and St. Joseph County as "eligible counties" and has provided that property taxes imposed in these eligible counties to pay debt service and make lease rental payments for bonds or leases issued or entered into before July 1, 2008 or on bonds issued or leases entered into after June 30, 2008 to refund those bonds or leases, will not be considered for purposes of calculating the limits to property tax liability under the provisions of the Statute, through and including December 31, 2019.

The Statute requires political subdivisions to fully fund the payment of outstanding debt service or lease rental obligations payable from property taxes ("Debt Service Obligations"), regardless of any reduction in property tax collections due to the application of the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. Upon: (i) the failure of a political subdivision to pay any of its Debt Service Obligations; and (ii) notification of that event to the treasurer of the State by a claimant; the treasurer of State is required to pay the unpaid Debt Service Obligations from money in the possession of the

State that would otherwise be available to the political subdivision under any other law. A deduction must be made: (i) first, from local income tax distributions that would otherwise be distributed to the county; and (ii) second, from any other undistributed funds of the political subdivision in possession of the State.

The Statute categorizes property taxes levied to pay Debt Service Obligations as "protected taxes," regardless of whether the property taxes were approved at a referendum, and all other property taxes as "unprotected taxes." The total amount of revenue to be distributed to the fund for which the protected taxes were imposed shall be determined without applying the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. The application of the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit must reduce only the amount of unprotected taxes of the Library in those taxing districts in which the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit caused a reduction in protected taxes. The tax revenue and each fund of any other political subdivisions must not be affected by the reduction.

If the allocation of property tax reductions to funds receiving only unprotected taxes is insufficient to offset the amount of the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit, the revenue for a fund receiving protected taxes will also be reduced. If a fund receiving protected taxes is reduced, the Statute provides that a political subdivision may transfer money from any other available source in order to meet its Debt Service Obligations. The amount of this transfer is limited to the amount by which the protected taxes are insufficient to meet Debt Service Obligations.

The Library cannot predict the timing, likelihood or impact on property tax collections of any future actions taken, amendments to the Constitution of the State of Indiana or legislation enacted, regulations or rulings promulgated or issued to implement any such regulations, statutes or the Constitutional Provision described above or of future property tax reform in general. There has been no judicial interpretation of this legislation. In addition, there can be no assurance as to future events or legislation that may affect the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit or the collection of property taxes by the Library.

For example, in March, 2016, the Indiana General Assembly passed legislation which revises the factors used to calculate the assessed value of agricultural land. This legislation is retroactive to the January 1, 2016, assessment date and applies to each assessment date thereafter. The revised factors enacted in the legislation may reduce the total assessed value of agricultural land, which could shift property tax liability from agricultural property owners to other property owners. In addition, the reduction in the assessed value of agricultural land may result in a reduction of the total assessed value of a library. A lower assessed value of a library may result in higher tax rates in order for a library to receive its approved property tax levy. *See* "PROCEDURES FOR PROPERTY ASSESSMENT, TAX LEVY AND COLLECTION" herein.

Estimated Circuit Breaker Tax Credit for the Library:

According to the DLGF, the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit allocable to the Library for budget years 2016, 2017 and 2018 were \$1,872, \$2,731 and \$2,533, respectively. These estimates do not include the estimated debt service on the Bonds.

The Circuit Breaker Tax Credit amounts above do not reflect the potential effect of any further changes in the property tax system or methods of funding local government that may be enacted by the Indiana General Assembly in the future. The effects of these changes could affect the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit and the impact could be material. Other future events, such as the loss of a major taxpayer, reductions in assessed value, increases in property tax rates of overlapping taxing units or the reduction in local option income taxes applied to property tax relief could increase effective property tax rates and the amount of the lost revenue due to the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit, and the resulting increase could be material.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

Pursuant to continuing disclosure requirements promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") in SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended to the date hereof (the "SEC Rule"), the Library will enter into a Master Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking"), to be dated the date of the sale of the Bonds. The Library represents that no Obligated Person is an obligated person (within the meaning of the SEC Rule) with respect to more than \$10,000,000 in aggregate amount of outstanding municipal securities including the Bonds and excluding municipal securities that were offered in a transaction exempt from the SEC Rule pursuant to paragraph (d)(1) of the

SEC Rule. Pursuant to the terms of the Undertaking, the Library agrees to provide the information detailed in the Undertaking, the form of which is attached hereto as Appendix D.

The Library may, from time to time, amend or modify the Undertaking without the consent of or notice to the owners of the Bonds if either (a)(i) such amendment or modification is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law or change in the identity, nature or status of the Library, or type of business conducted; (ii) the Undertaking, as so amended or modified, would have complied with the requirements of the SEC Rule on the date of execution of the Undertaking, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the SEC Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and (iii) such amendment or modification does not materially impair the interests of the holders of the Bonds, as determined either by (A) nationally recognized bond counsel or (B) an approving vote of the holders of the Bonds pursuant to the terms of the Resolution or Trust Indenture at the time of such amendment or modification; or (b) such amendment or modification (including an amendment or modification which rescinds the Undertaking) is permitted by the SEC Rule, then in effect.

The Library may, at its sole discretion, utilize an agent in connection with the dissemination of any annual financial information required to be provided by the Library pursuant to the terms of the Undertaking.

The purpose of the Undertaking is to enable the Underwriter to purchase the Bonds by providing for an undertaking by the Library in satisfaction of the SEC Rule. The Undertaking is solely for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds and creates no new contractual or other rights for the SEC, underwriters, brokers, dealers, municipal securities dealers, potential customers, other obligated persons or any other third party. The sole remedy against the Library for any failure to carry out any provision of the Undertaking shall be for specific performance of the Library's disclosure obligations under the Undertaking and not for money damages of any kind or in any amount or any other remedy. The Library's failure to honor its covenants under the Undertaking shall not constitute a breach or default of the Bonds, the Resolution or any other agreement.

As required by the SEC Rule, in the previous five years, the Library has not failed to comply, in all material respects, with any previous undertakings.

BOND RATING

S&P Global Ratings ("S&P Global") has also assigned an underlying rating of "AA-" to the Bonds. Such rating reflects only the view of S&P Global and any explanation of the significance of such ratings may only be obtained from S&P Global.

The rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Bonds, and such rating may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by S&P Global. Any downward revision or withdrawal of the rating may have an adverse effect upon the market price of the Bonds.

The Library did not apply to any other rating service for a rating on the Bonds.

UNDERWRITING

The Bonds are being purchased by J.J.B. Hilliard, W.L. Lyons, LLC et al. (collectively, the "Underwriter") at a purchase price of \$2,189,648.90, which is the par amount of the Bonds of \$2,200,000.00 less the underwriter's discount of \$29,195.00 plus the original issue premium of \$18,843.90.

The Underwriter intends to offer the Bonds to the public at the offering prices set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement. The Underwriter may allow concessions to certain dealers (including dealers in a selling group of the Underwriter and other dealers depositing the Bonds into investment trusts), who may reallow concessions to other dealers. After the initial public offering, the public offering price may be varied from time to time by the Underwriter.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

H.J. Umbaugh & Associates, Certified Public Accountants, LLP (the "Municipal Advisor") ("Umbaugh") has been retained by the Library to provide certain financial advisory services including, among other things, preparation of

the deemed "nearly final" Preliminary Official Statement and the Final Official Statement (the "Official Statements"). The information contained in the Official Statements has been compiled from records and other materials provided by Library officials and other sources deemed to be reliable. The Municipal Advisor has not and will not independently verify the completeness and accuracy of the information contained in the Official Statements.

The Municipal Advisor's duties, responsibilities and fees arise solely as Municipal Advisor to the Library and they have no secondary obligations or other responsibility. The Municipal Advisor's fees are expected to be paid from proceeds of the Bonds.

Municipal Advisor Registration:

Umbaugh is a Municipal Advisor registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. As such, Umbaugh is providing certain specific municipal advisory services to the Library, but is neither a placement agent to the Library nor a broker/dealer and cannot participate in the underwriting of the Bonds.

The offer and sale of the Bonds shall be made by the Library, in the sole discretion of the Library, and under its control and supervision. The Library agrees that Umbaugh does not undertake to sell or attempt to sell the Bonds, and will take no part in the sale thereof.

Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations:

Umbaugh Cash Advisory Services, LLC ("UCAS") is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Umbaugh. UCAS is registered as an investment adviser with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the federal Investment Advisers Act. UCAS provides non-discretionary investment advice with the purpose of helping clients create and maintain a disciplined approach to investing their funds prudently and effectively. UCAS may provide advisory services to the clients of Umbaugh.

UCAS has no other activities or arrangements that are material to its advisory business or its clients with a related person who is a broker-dealer, investment company, other investment adviser or financial planner, bank, law firm or other financial entity.

PROPOSED LEGISLATION

Current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court decisions may cause interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation or to be subject to or exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise prevent Beneficial Owners from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. The introduction or enactment of any such legislative proposals, clarification of the Code or court decisions may also affect the market price for, or marketability of, the Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, as to which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion.

Legislation affecting municipal bonds is considered from time to time by the United States Congress and the Executive Branch, including some proposed changes under consideration at the time of issuance of the Bonds. Bond Counsel's opinion is based upon the law in existence on the date of issuance of the Bonds. It is possible that legislation enacted after the date of issuance of the Bonds or proposed for consideration will have an adverse effect on the excludability of all or a part of the interest on the Bonds from gross income, the manner in which such interest is subject to federal income taxation or the market price of the Bonds.

Legislation affecting municipal bonds is considered from time to time by the Indiana legislature and Executive Branch. It is possible that legislation enacted after the date of the Bonds or proposed for consideration will have an adverse effect on payment or timing of payment or other matters impacting the Bonds.

The Library cannot predict the outcome of any such federal or state proposals as to passage, ultimate content or impact if passed, or timing of consideration or passage. Purchasers of the Bonds should reach their own conclusions regarding the impact of any such federal or state proposals.

TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Ice Miller LLP, Indianapolis, Indiana ("Bond Counsel") under existing laws, regulations, judicial decisions and rulings, interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") for federal income tax purposes and is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax, although Bond Counsel observes that it is included in adjusted current earnings in calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income for taxable years that begin prior to January 1, 2018. This opinion is conditioned on continuing compliance by the Library with the Tax Covenants (as hereinafter defined). Failure to comply with the Tax Covenants could cause interest on the Bonds to lose the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issue. In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing laws, regulations, judicial decisions and rulings, interest on the Bonds is exempt from income tax apurposes. *See* Appendix C for the form of opinion of Bond Counsel.

The Code imposes certain requirements which must be met subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds as a condition to the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes. The Library will covenant not to take any action, within its power and control, nor fail to take any action with respect to the Bonds that would result in the loss of the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Bonds pursuant to Section 103 of the Code (collectively, the "Tax Covenants"). The Resolution and certain certificates and agreements to be delivered on the date of delivery of the Bonds establish procedures under which compliance with the requirements of the Code can be met. It is not an event of default under the Resolution if interest on the Bonds is not excludable from gross income for federal tax purposes or otherwise pursuant to any provision of the Code which is not in effect on the issue date of the Bonds.

IC 6-5.5 imposes a franchise tax on certain taxpayers (as defined in IC 6-5.5) which, in general, include all corporations which are transacting the business of a financial institution in Indiana. The franchise tax will be measured in part by interest excluded from gross income under Section 103 of the Code minus associated expenses disallowed under Section 265 of the Code. Taxpayers should consult their own tax advisors regarding the impact of this legislation on their ownership of the Bonds.

Although Bond Counsel will render an opinion in the form attached as Appendix C hereto, the accrual or receipt of interest on the Bonds may otherwise affect a bondholder's federal income tax or state tax liability. The nature and extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon the bondholder's particular tax status and a bondholder's other items of income or deduction. Taxpayers who may be affected by such other tax consequences include, without limitation, individuals, financial institutions, certain insurance companies, S corporations, certain foreign corporations, individual recipients of Social Security or railroad retirement benefits and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred (or continued) indebtedness to purchase or carry the Bonds. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other such tax consequences. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with regard to the other tax consequences of owning the Bonds.

Under existing laws, judicial decisions, regulations and rulings, the Bonds have been designated as "qualified taxexempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code relating to the exception from the 100% disallowance of the deduction for interest expense allocable to interest on tax-exempt obligations acquired by financial institutions. The designation is conditioned on continuing compliance with the Tax Covenants.

ORIGINAL ISSUE DISCOUNT

The initial public offering price of the Bond maturing on January 15, 2031 (the "Discount Bond") is less than the principal amount payable at maturity. As a result the Discount Bond will be considered to be issued with original issue discount. A taxpayer who purchases the Discount Bond in the initial public offering at the price listed on the cover page hereof (assuming a substantial amount of the Discount Bond was sold at such price) and who holds such Discount Bond to maturity may treat the full amount of original issue discount as interest which is excludable from the gross income of the owner of that Discount Bond for federal income tax purposes and will not, under present federal income tax law, realize taxable capital gain upon payment of the Discount Bond at maturity.

The original issue discount on the Discount Bond is treated as accruing daily over the term of such Bond on the basis of the yield to maturity determined on the basis of compounding at the end of each six-month period (or

shorter period from the date of the original issue) ending on January 15 and July 15 (with straight line interpolation between compounding dates).

Section 1288 of the Code provides, with respect to tax-exempt obligations such as the Discount Bond, that the amount of original issue discount accruing each period will be added to the owner's tax basis for the Discount Bond. Such adjusted tax basis will be used to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition of the Discount Bond (including sale, redemption or payment at maturity). Owners of the Discount Bond who dispose of the Discount Bond prior to maturity should consult their tax advisors concerning the amount of original issue discount accrued over the period held and the amount of taxable gain or loss upon the sale or other disposition of such Discount Bond prior to maturity.

As described above in "Tax Matters," the original issue discount that accrues in each year to an owner of a Discount Bond may result in certain collateral federal income tax consequences. Owners of the Discount Bond should be aware that the accrual of original issue discount in each year may result in a tax liability from these collateral tax consequences even though the owners of such Discount Bond will not receive a corresponding cash payment until a later year.

Owners who purchase the Discount Bond in the initial public offering but at a price different from the Issue Price for such maturity should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of the ownership of the Discount Bond.

The Code contains certain provisions relating to the accrual of original issue discount in the case of subsequent purchasers of bonds such as the Discount Bond. Owners who do not purchase Discount Bond in the initial offering should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of the ownership of the Discount Bond.

Owners of the Discount Bond should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning the Discount Bond. It is possible under the applicable provisions governing the determination of state or local income taxes accrued interest on the Discount Bond may be deemed to be received in the year of accrual even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment until a later year.

AMORTIZABLE BOND PREMIUM

The initial offering price of the Bonds maturing on July 15, 2019 through and including July 15, 2026 and on July 15, 2029 (collectively, the "Premium Bonds"), is greater than the principal amount payable at maturity or call date. As a result, the Premium Bonds will be considered to be issued with amortizable bond premium (the "Bond Premium"). An owner who acquires a Premium Bond in the initial offering will be required to adjust the owner's basis in the Premium Bond downward as a result of the amortization of the Bond Premium, pursuant to Section 1016(a)(5) of the Code. Such adjusted tax basis will be used to determine taxable gain or loss upon the disposition of the Premium Bonds (including sale, redemption or payment at maturity or call). The amount of amortizable Bond Premium will be computed on the basis of the owner's yield to maturity, with compounding at the end of each accrual period. Rules for determining (i) the amount of amortizable Bond Premium and (ii) the amount amortizable in a particular year are set forth in Section 171(b) of the Code. No income tax deduction for the amount of amortizable Bond Premium will be allowed pursuant to Section 171(a)(2) of the Code, but amortization of Bond Premium may be taken into account as a reduction in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining other tax consequences of owning the Premium Bonds. Owners of the Premium Bonds should consult their tax advisors with respect to the precise determination for federal income tax purposes of the treatment of Bond Premium upon the sale or other disposition of Premium Bonds and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning and disposing of the Premium Bonds.

Special rules governing the treatment of Bond Premium, which are applicable to dealers in tax-exempt securities are found at Section 75 of the Code. Dealers in tax-exempt securities are urged to consult their own tax advisors concerning treatment of Bond Premium.

LITIGATION

To the knowledge of the officers and counsel for the Library, there is no litigation pending or threatened, against the Library, which in any way questions or affects the validity of the Bonds, or any proceedings or transactions relating to the issuance, sale or delivery thereof.

The officers and counsel for the Library will certify at the time of delivery of the Bonds that there is no litigation pending or in any way threatened questioning the validity of the Bonds, or any of the proceedings had relating to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds, the Bond Resolution or the Project that would result in a material adverse impact on the financial condition of the Library.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

Legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds are subject to the unqualified approving opinion of Ice Miller LLP, Indianapolis, Indiana, Bond Counsel, whose approving opinion will be available at the time of delivery of the Bonds. Ice Miller LLP has not been asked nor has it undertaken to review the accuracy or sufficiency of this Official Statement, and will express no opinion thereon. The form of opinion of Bond Counsel is included as Appendix C of this Official Statement.

LEGAL OPINIONS AND ENFORCEABILITY OF REMEDIES

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the professional judgment of the attorneys rendering the opinions on the legal issues explicitly addressed therein. By rendering a legal opinion, the opinion giver does not become an insurer or guarantor of that expression of professional judgment, of the transaction opined upon, or of the future performance of parties to such transaction. Nor does the rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the transaction.

The remedies available to the bondholders upon a default under the Bond Resolution, are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are often subject to discretion and delay. Under existing constitutional and statutory law and judicial decisions, including specifically Title 11 of the United States Code (the federal bankruptcy code), the remedies provided in the Bond Resolution may not be readily available or may be limited. Under federal and State environmental laws certain liens may be imposed on property of the Library from time to time, but the Library has no reason to believe, under existing law, that any such lien would have priority over the lien on the property taxes pledged to the payment of debt service for owners of the Bonds.

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by the valid exercise of the constitutional powers of the State and the United States of America and bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally, and by general principles of equity (regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law).

These exceptions would encompass any exercise of federal, State or local police powers (including the police powers of the Library), in a manner consistent with the public health and welfare. Enforceability of the Bond Resolution in a situation where such enforcement may adversely affect public health and welfare may be subject to these police powers.

The Library certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that this Official Statement, as of its date and as it relates to the Library and its economic and financial condition, (i) is complete and accurate; (ii) does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact; and (iii) does not omit any material facts or information which would make the statements contained herein misleading.

This Official Statement and its execution are duly authorized.

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

By: Constance Fleagues. President, Board of Trustees

Attest: Maron X. Guns Secretary, Board of Trustees

APPENDIX A

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page(s)

Morgan County Public Library	
System Overview	
Facilities	A-1
Services	
Administration and Staff	
Pension Obligations	
General Physical and Demographic Information	
Location	
General Characteristics	
Planning and Zoning	
Education	
Higher Education	
General Economic and Financial Information	
Commerce and Industry	
Large Employers	
Employment	
Building Permits	
Population	
Age Statistics	
Educational Attainment	
Miscellaneous Economic Information	
Schedule of Indebtedness	
Debt Ratios	A-11
Debt Limit	A-11
Schedule of Historical Net Assessed Valuation	
Detail of Net Assessed Valuation	
Comparative Schedule of Certified Tax Rates	A-14
Property Taxes Levied and Collected	
Large Taxpayers	
Statement of Receipts, Disbursements, and Cash and Investment Balance	ces - Regulatory BasisA-17 – A-19

(This page intentionally left blank.)

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

SYSTEM OVERVIEW

The Morgan County Public Library (the "Library") was established in 1906, as the Martinsville Public Library. The Library was primarily funded by Andrew Carnegie, who donated approximately \$12,500 to begin construction. In addition to Carnegie's funding, officials from the City of Martinsville (the "City") provided additional funding to ensure the Library would be constructed using Indiana limestone.

The Library served only residents of the City and Washington Township until 1971, when the Library expanded its service to most areas in Morgan County. In 1990, the Library completed a \$1.7 million renovation and expansion, causing the Library to quadruple in size. Since then, the Library has enjoyed additional improvements in order to maintain quality services for its residents. Additionally, the Library became part of the Evergreen Indiana consortium in 2009, which gives the Library's borrowers access to approximately 100 libraries and 8 million items across Indiana.

FACILITIES

The Library's main branch is located in the City, which offers several amenities to its residents. The main Library features a meeting room, movies, Wi-Fi, daily newspapers, video games, and resources for genealogy research. In addition to its main branch, the Library has several branches throughout the County, including its Brooklyn, Eminence, Monrovia, Morgantown, and Waverly campuses.

SERVICES

The following statistics show the use of the Library's facilities over the past three years, including programming statistics.

	<u>2015</u>	<u>2016</u>	<u>2017</u>
Number of Registered Borrowers (1)	21,050	20,169	19,638
Circulation: (2)			
Total Circulation - All Materials	338,680	325,688	320,660
Circulation - All Children's Materials	97,579	98,151	85,117
Selected Holdings:			
Books and Bound Serials	159,448	159,996	152,584 (3)
Video Materials – Physical Units	12,009	13,405	12,664
Video Materials – Downloadable (4)	326	377	410
Audio Materials – Physical Units	8,030	7,932	7,824
Audio Materials – Downloadable (4)	4,783	7,529	10,197
Electronic Format	902	1,091	
E-books (4)	30,777	39,108	42,686
Serial Subscriptions (5)	327	220	209

- (1) The Library's process for purging inactive user accounts has recently been automated, which may have led to greater decreases of registered user accounts.
- (2) Circulation decreases have been consistent with national trends and may also be caused by the popularity of e-books and other forms of electronic media. In addition, the Library has focused on creating more spaces for people to congregate, which means there is less space for physical books.
- (3) Because the Evergreen Indiana consortium allows Library users to access millions of circulated items in over 100 libraries, the Library has been less inclined to replace older books with newer ones.
- (4) The Library has seen a recent increase in demand for downloadable and electronic items, which has also caused demand for physical items to decrease.
- (5) Several serial publications have ceased circulation while other serial publications have transitioned from physical offerings to online access.

	Nu	mber of Prog	grams		Attendance	
Programs	<u>2015</u>	<u>2016</u>	<u>2017</u>	2015	<u>2016</u>	<u>2017</u>
Children (1)	629	676	621	9,953	9,335	9,001
Young Adults	113	133	140	1,466	1,117	1,721
Adults (2)	180	177	149	1,293	1,338	1,353
General (2)	36	32	<u> 50</u>	1,652	1,794	1,985
Totals	<u>958</u>	<u>1,018</u>	<u>960</u>	<u>14,364</u>	<u>13,584</u>	<u>14,060</u>

- (1) In 2017, the Library shortened its summer reading program for children from approximately nine weeks to approximately six weeks. Library officials cite changing demographics and earlier starts to the school year for this change in programming and attendance.
- (2) The increase in General programming is due to the rising popularity of family programs, which appeal to a wide audience. The Library chose to reallocate resources from Adult programming to General programming to meet this demand.

Source: Indiana Public Library Annual Reports http://www.in.gov/library/plstats.htm

ADMINISTRATION AND STAFF

The Library is governed by a seven-member Board of Trustees which is appointed as follows: two members are appointed by the Morgan County Council, two members are appointed by the Morgan County Commissioners, two members are appointed by the Metropolitan School District of Martinsville, and one member is collectively appointed by the School Board Presidents of Eminence Community School Corporation, Monroe-Gregg School District, Mooresville Consolidated School Corporation, and Nineveh-Hensley-Jackson United School Corporation. The Library employs a total of approximately 43 full and part-time employees.

PENSION OBLIGATIONS

Public Employees' Retirement Fund

Plan Description

The Indiana Public Employees' Retirement Fund (PERF) is a defined benefit pension plan. PERF is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system, which provides retirement benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. All full-time employees are eligible to participate in this defined benefit plan. State statutes (IC 5-10.2 and 5-10.3) govern, through the Indiana Public Retirement System (INPRS) Board, most requirements of the system, and give the Library authority to contribute to the plan. The PERF retirement benefit consists of the pension provided by employer contributions plus an annuity provided by the member's annuity savings account. The annuity savings account consists of members' contributions, set by state statute at 3 percent of compensation, plus the interest credited to the member's account. The employer may elect to make the contributions on behalf of the member.

INPRS administers the plan and issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan as a whole and for its participants. That report may be obtained by contacting:

Indiana Public Retirement System One North Capitol, Suite 001 Indianapolis, IN 46204 Ph. (888) 526-1687

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost

The contribution requirements of the plan members for PERF are established by the Board of Trustees of INPRS.

Employer contributions for the year 2017 were \$65,604.

Additional Benefits

Library employees may also participate in Hoosier S.T.A.R.T., a deferred compensation plan that is managed by the State. However, Library employees are responsible for the full cost of this benefit.

Other Postemployment Benefits

The Library compensates employees for accrued vacation days at the time of termination of employment. Employees are paid at their regular rates at a maximum of 33 accrued vacation days.

In 2017, the Library paid \$121 for this benefit.

GENERAL PHYSICAL AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

LOCATION

The Library is located in Morgan County (the "County") in central Indiana. The Library is approximately 30 miles southwest of Indianapolis, 65 miles east of Terre Haute, and 110 miles northwest of Louisville, Kentucky. The Library is located in the City, which is intersected by State Roads 37 and 39. The City is the county seat of the County.

GENERAL CHARACTERISTICS

Library residents have access to numerous recreational facilities throughout the County. Jimmy Nash City Park offers several ways to enjoy the outdoors across its 100 acres, which feature basketball courts, a fishing pond, and a walking trail. In addition, Jimmy Nash City Park is home to a family-friendly swimming area, which includes a diving well, two large slides, a splash pad, and a baby pool. Library residents can also enjoy Martinsville's Doris Daily, Mulberry Street, and Victory Parks, which provide basketball goals and picnic areas. Additionally, the County features several public golf courses for residents to enjoy, including Martinsville Golf Club, Foxcliff Golf Course, and Eagle Pines Golf Club.

The County is also home to Hunter's Honey Farm ("Hunter's"), which has operated in the County since 1910. Hunter's specializes in honey production and has been family-owned for over a century. Visitors can enjoy several tours throughout Hunter's facility, including the Honey Barn, Hayride, and Forestry Tours. Visitors also have the opportunity to bottle their own honey bear jars. In addition to honey, Hunter's produces several honey-based products, including beeswax candles, beeswax lip balm, honey hot wing sauce, and honey roasted pecans.

PLANNING AND ZONING

The County has a nine-member Plan Commission to provide orderly growth for residential, commercial, and industrial areas within the County. The County also has a five-member Board of Zoning Appeals. The City also has a nine-member Plan Commission and a five-member Board of Zoning Appeals.

EDUCATION

Metropolitan School District of Martinsville, Mooresville Consolidated School Corporation, Monroe-Gregg School District, Eminence Community School Corporation, and Nineveh-Hensley-Jackson United School Corporation provide public education for school-aged children of the Library. Each of the school corporations offers a comprehensive academic curriculum and a variety of extra-curricular activities. Enrollment and employment information are reported by school administrators as follows:

	2017/2018 Enrollment	Certified Employment	Non-Certified Employment
Metropolitan School District of Martinsville	4,485	319	322
Mooresville Consolidated School Corporation	4,367	240	300
Monroe-Gregg School District	1,490	99	98
Eminence Community School Corporation	360	32	33
Nineveh-Hensley-Jackson United School Corporation	1,833	119	176

HIGHER EDUCATION

Indiana University (the "University") is located approximately 19 miles south of the Library in neighboring Monroe County. The University serves as the flagship campus for the greater Indiana University program, which has several satellite campuses throughout Indiana, including nearby Indianapolis. The University was established in 1820 and specializes in several academic areas, including business, law, medicine, music, media, public affairs, and international relations. The University alone enrolls approximately 33,000 undergraduate students annually. The University is also home to the historic men's basketball program and several other NCAA Division I sports teams.

Library residents also have access to Franklin College (the "College"), which is located approximately 23 miles east of the Library in neighboring Johnson County. The College is a private liberal arts institution offering over 50 majors across 24 different academic disciplines. The College prides itself on its relatively small student-to-teacher ratio, which is approximately 11 to 1.

GENERAL ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY

Located just southwest of Indianapolis, the County is served by numerous transportation outlets, including Interstate 70 and State Roads 37, 39, and 67. Improvements are being made to State Road 37 in the County and plans are currently underway to reconstruct and connect State Road 37 with Interstate 69.

TOA (USA) LLC is located in Mooresville and was established in 2000. The company supplies and manufactures automotive suspension and frame parts for automotive companies, including Subaru in Lafayette and Toyota in Princeton. In July 2017, the company announced an expansion of its E-Coat facility. The \$7.7 million project will consist of a 38,000 square-foot expansion and create another 40 jobs. Since June 2014, the company has invested a grand total of \$111.2 million into its Mooresville facility, bringing 300 new jobs into the community. According to the Morgan County Economic Development Corporation, the company currently employs approximately 1,107 workers.

Health care is a major industry in the County, where Franciscan St. Francis Health and IU Health Morgan County serve as two of the area's largest employers. According to the 2017 Harris Indiana Services Directory, approximately 500 and 400 employees work for the two companies, respectively. Franciscan St. Francis Health has been serving the area since 1881, when it was originally named Kendrick Hospital. The facility currently provides services in numerous areas, including occupational health, orthopedics, rehabilitation, sleeping disorders, and sports medicine. The facility is conveniently located off of State Road 67 in Mooresville. IU Health Morgan County is located in Martinsville and has served the area since 1924. The facility offers several services, including cancer care, diagnostic imaging, lab testing, outpatient procedures, physical, speech, and occupational therapies, and a 24-hour emergency room. After a recent renovation, the facility's emergency room nearly doubled in size, which currently includes 13 exam rooms and four observation rooms.

In addition to health care, the County's economy is largely impacted by utility services. In July 2018, Inside Indiana Business reported that Indianapolis Power & Light would be opening a new \$600 million facility in Martinsville. The company's new facility is expected to reduce emissions and have a positive impact on the County's economy, according to the company. However, Inside Indiana Business reported in February 2018 that the company would be

permanently laying off approximately 100 employees throughout central Indiana, including the company's Martinsville facility. In September 2018, Inside Indiana Business reported that South Central Indiana REMC would begin the second phase of a four-phased project in the region in early 2019. The total project is approximately \$100 million and is part of the organization's effort to spread fiber cable into residential areas across seven counties. The project is expected to provide high-speed Internet to approximately 24,500 homes in rural areas. Additionally, Inside Indiana Business reported in January 2018 that AT&T had built an additional cell tower in Martinsville.

In September 2018, Inside Indiana Business reported that Quality Packaging Specialists International LLC would be laying off approximately 85 workers in the County and closing its Mooresville facility. The New Jersey-based company established its presence in the area in 2012 and specializes in supply chain management and contract packaging.

LARGE EMPLOYERS

Below is a list of the County's largest employers. The number of employees shown are as reported by company personnel unless otherwise noted. Because of reporting time lags and other factors inherent in collecting and reporting such information, the statistics may not reflect recent employment levels.

Name	Year <u>Established</u>	Type of Business	Reported <u>Employment</u>
TOA (USA) LLC	2000	Mfg. automotive parts and supplier	1,107 (1)
	2000		
Metropolitan School District of Martinsville		Public education	641 (2)
Nice-Pak Products, Inc.		Mfg. moistened wipes	550 (3)
Mooresville Consolidated School District		Public education	540 (4)
Franciscan St. Francis Health	1881	Health care	500 (3)
Morgan County	1822	County government	400
IU Health Morgan County	1924	Health care	400 (3)
Nineveh-Hensley-Jackson United School Corporation		Public education	295 (5)
Wal-Mart Stores		Retail	250 (6)
Monroe-Gregg School District		Public education	197 (7)

(1) Per the Morgan County Economic Development Corporation (the "EDC"). In addition, the EDC anticipates the company will reach 1,168 workers after experiencing recent lay-offs. The company is currently hiring additional workers to achieve this target.

(2) Per the School District, includes 319 certified and 322 non-certified staff.

(3) Per the 2017 Harris Indiana Directories.

(4) Per the School District, includes 240 certified and 300 non-certified staff.

(5) Per the School Corporation, includes 119 certified and 176 non-certified staff. In addition, the School Corporation's taxing districts include areas of Johnson and Morgan Counties. However, the majority of the School Corporation's net assessed valuation is located in Johnson County.

(6) Per Hoosiers by the Numbers.

(7) Per the School District, includes 99 certified and 98 non-certified staff.

EMPLOYMENT

	Unemployn	nent Rate	Morgan	
	Morgan		County	
Year	County	Indiana	Labor Force	
2013	7.6%	7.7%	34,826	
2014	5.8%	6.0%	34,969	
2015	4.7%	4.8%	35,368	
2016	4.2%	4.4%	36,019	
2017	3.5%	3.5%	36,114	
2018, June	3.5%	3.6%	37,583	

Source: Indiana Business Research Center. Data collected as of August 10, 2018.

BUILDING PERMITS

Provided below is a summary of the number of building permits and estimated construction costs for the City.

	Res	Residential		Commercial & Industrial		Total	
	Total	Estimated	Total	Estimated	Total	Estimated	
Year	Permits	Costs	Permits	Costs	Permits	<u>Costs</u>	
2013	15	\$1,484,000	12	\$3,128,195	27	\$4,612,195	
2014	27	1,050,090	11	2,962,400	38	4,012,490	
2015	22	1,667,360	8	2,418,798	30	4,086,158	
2016	75	1,975,008	16	4,510,762	91	6,485,770	
2017	67	2,645,202	38	10,277,038	105	12,922,240	

Source: City of Martinsville Building and Planning Department.

POPULATION

	Morgan	County		
	Public Library*		Morgan County	
	Percent of			Percent of
Year	Population	Change	Population	Change
1970	35,572	26.13%	44,176	30.41%
1980	42,714	20.08%	51,999	17.71%
1990	45,871	7.39%	55,920	7.54%
2000	53,198	15.97%	66,689	19.26%
2010	55,921	5.12%	68,894	3.31%
2017, Est.	56,464	0.97%	69,713	1.19%

*Represents the population of Morgan County excluding Brown Township.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau

AGE STATISTICS

	Morgan <u>County</u>
Under 25 Years	22,622
25 to 44 Years	17,044
45 to 64 Years	20,309
65 Years and Over	8,919
Totals	68,894

Source: U.S. Census Bureau's 2010 Census

EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT

	Persons 25 and Over
Years of	Morgan
School Completed	<u>County</u>
Less than 9th grade	2.5%
9th to 12th grade, no diploma	9.1%
High school graduate	42.1%
Some college, no degree	20.7%
Associate's degree	10.1%
Bachelor's degree	10.5%
Graduate or professional degree	5.1%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau's 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

MISCELLANEOUS ECONOMIC INFORMATION

	Morgan	
	County	<u>Indiana</u>
Per capita income, past 12 months*	\$26,556	\$26,117
Median household income, past 12 months*	\$57,521	\$50,433
Average weekly earnings in manufacturing		
(4th qtr. of 2017)	\$986	\$1,186
Land area in square miles - 2010	403.97	35,826.11
Population per land square mile - 2010	170.5	181.0
Retail sales in 2012:		
Total retail sales	\$638,046,000	\$85,857,962,000
Sales per capita**	\$9,261	\$13,242
Sales per establishment	\$3,255,337	\$3,974,722

*In 2016 inflation-adjusted dollars - 5-year estimates

**Based on 2010 Population.

Source: Bureau of Census Reports and the Indiana Business Research Center. Data collected as of August 10, 2018.

Employment and Earnings -		Percent of		Distribution of
Morgan County 2016	<u>Earnings</u>	Earnings	Labor Force	Labor Force
	(In 1,000s)			
Services	\$260,435	25.24%	7,723	31.51%
Construction	183,216	17.76%	2,814	11.48%
Manufacturing	166,177	16.10%	2,790	11.38%
Government	136,246	13.20%	2,945	12.02%
Wholesale and retail trade	117,092	11.35%	3,668	14.97%
Finance, insurance, and real estate	46,777	4.53%	1,906	7.78%
Other*	37,245	3.61%	1,026	4.19%
Farming	29,785	2.89%	606	2.47%
Utilities	24,354	2.36%	199	0.81%
Transportation and warehousing	16,262	1.58%	493	2.01%
Information	6,582	0.64%	148	0.60%
Forestry, fishing, related activities	4,093	0.40%	101	0.41%
Mining	3,592	0.34%	90	0.37%
Totals	\$1,031,856	100.00%	24,509	100.00%

*In order to avoid disclosure of confidential information, specific earnings and employment figures are not available for certain Service Sectors. The data is incorporated here.

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis and the Indiana Business Research Center. Data collected as of August 10, 2018.

Adjusted Gross Income	Year	Morgan County <u>Total</u>
	2011	\$1,471,364,400
	2012	1,534,018,212
	2013	1,503,423,715
	2014	1,571,491,787
	2015	1,607,412,230

Source: Indiana Department of Revenue

SCHEDULE OF INDEBTEDNESS

The following schedule shows the outstanding indebtedness of the Library and the taxing units within and overlapping its jurisdiction as of August 28, 2018, including issuance of the Bonds, as reported by the respective taxing units.

Direct Debt	Original <u>Par Amount</u>	Final <u>Maturity</u>	Outstanding <u>Amount</u>
Tax Supported Debt			
General Obligation Bonds of 2018 (This Issue)	\$2,200,000	01/15/31	\$2,200,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2007	1,745,000	01/15/19	120,000
Total Direct Debt			\$2,320,000
		Percent	Amount
		Allocable to	Allocable to
Overlapping Debt	Total Debt	Library (1)	Library
Tax Supported Debt			
Morgan County	\$7,862,852	80.14%	\$6,301,290
Jefferson Township	24,149	100.00%	24,149
Madison Township	230,658	100.00%	230,658
Washington Township	23,206	100.00%	23,206
Town of Brooklyn	97,566	100.00%	97,566
City of Martinsville	4,585,000	100.00%	4,585,000
Town of Morgantown	55,771	100.00%	55,771
Eminence Community School Corporation	3,275,000	100.00%	3,275,000
Metropolitan School District of Martinsville	10,210,000	100.00%	10,210,000
Monroe-Gregg School District	26,079,899	100.00%	26,079,899
Mooresville Consolidated School District	42,176,267	43.95%	18,536,469
Nineveh-Hensley-Jackson United School Corporation	16,029,331	29.53%	4,733,461
Monroe Township Fire District	214,048	100.00%	214,048
Tax Supported Debt			74,366,517
Self-Supporting Revenue Debt			
Town of Brooklyn	254,497	100.00%	254,497
City of Martinsville	10,632,000	100.00%	10,632,000
Town of Monrovia	405,000	100.00%	405,000
Town of Morgantown	1,012,830	100.00%	1,012,830
Town of Paragon	409,000	100.00%	409,000
Self-Supporting Revenue Debt			12,713,327
Total Overlapping Debt			\$87,079,844

(1) Based upon the 2017 payable 2018 net assessed valuation of the respective taxing units.

The schedule presented above is based on information furnished by the obligors or other sources and is deemed reliable. The Library makes no representation or warranty as to its accuracy or completeness.

DEBT RATIOS

The following presents the ratios relative to the tax supported indebtedness of the taxing units within and overlapping the Library as of August 28, 2018, including issuance of the Bonds.

	Direct Tax Supported Debt \$2,320,000	Allocable Portion of All Other Overlapping Tax Supported Debt \$74,366,517	Total Direct and Overlapping Tax Supported Debt \$76,686,517
Per capita (1)	\$41.09	\$1,317.06	\$1,358.15
Percent of net assessed valuation (2)	0.09%	3.02%	3.11%
Percent of gross assessed valuation (3)	0.06%	1.84%	1.90%

- (1) According to the U.S. Census Bureau, the estimated 2017 population of the Library is 56,464.
- (2) The net assessed valuation of the Library for taxes payable in 2018 is \$2,465,147,057 according to the Morgan County Auditor's office.
- (3) The gross assessed valuation of the Library for taxes payable in 2018 is \$4,033,817,180 according to the Morgan County Auditor's office.

DEBT LIMIT

The amount of general obligation debt a political subdivision of the State of Indiana can incur is controlled by the constitutional debt limit, which is an amount equal to 2% of the value of taxable property within the political subdivision. Pursuant to Indiana Code 36-1-15, the value of taxable property within the political subdivision is divided by three for the purposes of this calculation. The Library debt limit, based upon the adjusted value of taxable property, is shown below.

Certified net assessed valuation (Taxes payable in 2018) Times: 2% general obligation debt issue limit	\$2,475,831,053 2%
Sub-total Divided by 3	49,516,621
General obligation debt issue limit	16,505,540
Less: Outstanding general obligation debt including the Bonds	(2,320,000)
Estimated amount remaining for general obligation debt issuance	\$14,185,540

SCHEDULE OF HISTORICAL NET ASSESSED VALUATION

(As Provided by the Morgan County Auditor's Office)

Year <u>Payable</u>	Real Estate	<u>Utilities</u>	Personal <u>Property</u>	Total <u>Taxable Value</u>
2014	\$2,238,720,067	\$94,793,860	\$66,759,190	\$2,400,273,117
2015	2,223,352,532	95,114,485	70,872,870	2,389,339,887
2016	2,248,391,939	99,857,860	70,646,422	2,418,896,221
2017	2,243,600,270	130,542,580	50,651,243	2,424,794,093
2018	2,286,648,935	125,023,500	53,474,622	2,465,147,057
2019				2,545,207,061 (1)

- (1) Represents the Certified Net Assessed Value of the Library per the Department of Local Government Finance (the "DLGF").
- NOTE: Net assessed valuations represent the assessed value less certain deductions for mortgages, veterans, the aged and the blind, as well as tax-exempt property.

Real property is valued for assessment purposes at its true tax value as defined in the Real Property Assessment Rule, 50 IAC 2.4, the 2011 Real Property Assessment Manual ("Manual"), as incorporated into 50 IAC 2.4, and the 2011 Real Property Assessment Guidelines ("Guidelines"), as adopted by the DLGF. In the case of agricultural land, true tax value is the value determined in accordance with the Guidelines adopted by the DLGF and IC 6-1.1-4-13. In the case of all other real property, true tax value is defined as "the market value-in-use of a property for its current use, as reflected by the utility received by the owner or by a similar user, from the property."

P.L. 180-2016 revises the factors used to calculate the assessed value of agricultural land. This legislation is retroactive to the January 1, 2016 assessment date and applies to each assessment date thereafter. The revised factors enacted in the legislation may reduce the total assessed value of agricultural land, which could shift property tax liability from agricultural property owners to other property owners. In addition, the reduction in the assessed value of agricultural land may result in a reduction of the total assessed value of a Library. Lower assessed values of a Library may result in higher tax rates in order for a Library to receive its approved property tax levy.

Real property assessments are annually adjusted to market value based on sales data. The process of adjusting real property assessments to reflect market values has been termed "trending" by the DLGF.

The Manual permits assessing officials in each county to choose any acceptable mass appraisal method to determine true tax value, taking into consideration the ease of administration and the uniformity of the assessments produced by that method. The Guidelines were adopted to provide assessing officials with an acceptable appraisal method, although the Manual makes it clear that assessing officials are free to select from any number of appraisal methods, provided that they produce accurate and uniform values throughout the jurisdiction and across all classes of property. The Manual specifies the standards for accuracy and validation that the DLGF uses to determine the acceptability of any alternative appraisal method.

DETAIL OF NET ASSESSED VALUATION

Assessed 2017 for Taxes Payable in 2018 (As Provided by the Morgan County Auditor's Office)

	Total
Gross Value of Land Gross Value of Improvements	\$1,109,950,700 2,712,703,100
Stoss value of improvements	2,712,705,100
Total Gross Value of Real Estate	3,822,653,800
Less: Mortgage Exemptions, Veterans, Blind	
Age 65 & Other Exemptions	(1,436,784,148)
Tax Exempt Property	(82,429,286)
TIF	(16,791,431)
Net Assessed Value of Real Estate	2,286,648,935
Business Personal Property	86,139,880
Less: Deductions	(32,665,258)
Net Assessed Value of Personal Property	53,474,622
Net Assessed Value of Utility Property	125,023,500
Total Net Assessed Value	\$2,465,147,057

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF CERTIFIED TAX RATES

Per \$100 of Net Assessed Valuation

	Year Taxes Payable						
	<u>2014</u>	<u>2014</u> <u>2015</u> <u>2016</u> <u>2017</u> <u>2018</u>					
Detail of Certified Tax Rate:							
General	\$0.0375	\$0.0386	\$0.0393	\$0.0407	\$0.0410		
Debt Payment	0.0073	0.0095	0.0089	0.0087	0.0042		
Totals	\$0.0448	\$0.0481	\$0.0482	\$0.0494	\$0.0452		

Total District Certified Tax Rate (1)

Adams Township	\$0.9845	\$1.3030	\$1.3550	\$1.6819	\$1.7514
Ashland Township	\$0.9874	\$1.3106	\$1.3640	\$1.6883	\$1.7537
Baker Township	\$0.9122	\$0.9557	\$0.9197	\$1.1417	\$1.1084
Clay Township	\$0.9470	\$0.9942	\$0.9600	\$1.1833	\$1.1467
Bethany Town	\$1.3614	\$1.4411	\$1.4595	\$1.7178	\$1.6731
Brooklyn Town	\$1.2982	\$1.3511	\$1.3600	\$1.5447	\$1.5048
Green Townsihp	\$1.0205	\$1.0658	\$1.0279	\$1.2518	\$1.2089
Gregg Township	\$1.3291	\$1.4572	\$1.4692	\$1.6016	\$1.5812
Harrison Township	\$1.1255	\$1.1694	\$1.1664	\$1.3234	\$1.3074
Jackson Township	\$1.0345	\$1.0770	\$1.1325	\$1.3089	\$1.2967
Morgantown Town	\$1.6355	\$1.7507	\$1.8173	\$2.0401	\$2.0770
Jefferson Township	\$0.9257	\$0.9708	\$0.9691	\$1.1959	\$1.1587
Madison Township	\$1.2713	\$1.3049	\$1.3054	\$1.3245	\$1.3293
Monroe Township	\$1.3318	\$1.4601	\$1.4430	\$1.6279	\$1.6090
Ray Township	\$0.9510	\$0.9944	\$0.9600	\$1.1869	\$1.1555
Paragon Town	\$1.4090	\$1.4715	\$1.4432	\$1.6871	\$1.6877
Washington Township	\$1.0452	\$1.0977	\$1.0473	\$1.2875	\$1.2490
Martinsville City	\$2.0880	\$2.2793	\$2.3719	\$2.6754	\$2.6813
Monrovia Town	\$1.4920	\$1.6110	\$1.5883	\$1.7798	\$1.7700
Martinsville MTE		\$0.9464	\$0.9188	\$1.1445	\$1.1113
Martinsville Annex Phase-In			\$2.3719		
Brooklyn Phase-In				\$1.5447	\$1.5048

(1) Includes certified tax rates of overlapping taxing units.

Source: DLGF Certified Budget Orders for the Library.

PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED

	Certified		Certified Taxes Levied Net of		Collected as	Collected as
Collection		Circuit Breaker	Circuit Breaker	Taxes	Percent of	Percent of
	Taxes					
Year	Levied	Tax Credit	<u>Tax Credit</u>	<u>Collected</u>	Gross Levy	<u>Net Levy</u>
		(1)				
2013	\$1,062,281	(\$677)	\$1,061,604	\$1,081,229	101.78%	101.85%
2014	1,068,215	(1,015)	1,067,200	1,081,747	101.27%	101.36%
2015	1,138,929	(1,365)	1,137,564	1,151,965	101.14%	101.27%
2016	1,154,417	(1,872)	1,152,545	1,168,315	101.20%	101.37%
2017	1,186,424	(2,731)	1,183,693	1,195,446	100.76%	100.99%
2018	1,119,076	(2,533)	1,116,543	(In P	rocess of Collect	ion)

Source: The Morgan County Auditor's Office and the DLGF Certified Budget Orders for the Library.

(1) Circuit Breaker Tax Credits allocable to the Library per the DLGF.

Indiana Code 6-1.1-20.6 (the "Statute") provides taxpayers with a tax credit for all property taxes in an amount that exceeds the gross assessed value of real and personal property eligible for the credit ("Circuit Breaker Tax Credit").

Property taxes for residential homesteads are limited to 1.0% of the gross assessed value of the homestead; property taxes for agricultural, other residential property and long term care facilities are limited to 2.0% of their gross assessed value; and property taxes for all other real and personal property are limited to 3.0% of gross assessed value. Additional property tax limits have been made available to certain senior citizens. School corporations are authorized to impose a referendum tax levy to replace property tax revenue that the school corporation will not receive due to the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. Other political subdivisions may not increase their property tax levy or borrow money to make up for any property tax revenue shortfall due to the application of the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit.

The Statute categorizes property taxes levied to pay Debt Service Obligations as "protected taxes," regardless of whether the property taxes were approved at a referendum, and all other property taxes as "unprotected taxes." The total amount of revenue to be distributed to the fund for which the protected taxes were imposed shall be determined without applying the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. The application of the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit must reduce only the amount of unprotected taxes of the political subdivision in those taxing districts in which the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit caused a reduction in protected taxes. The tax revenue and each fund of any other political subdivisions must not be affected by the reduction.

LARGE TAXPAYERS

The following is a list of the ten largest taxpayers located within the Library.

Name	Type of Business	2017/2018 Net Assessed Valuation	Percent of Total Net Assessed Valuation (1)
<u>Ivanic</u>	Type of Dusiness	valuation	v aruation (1)
Indianapolis Power & Light (2)	Electric utility	\$63,256,770	2.57%
South Central Indiana REMC	Electric utility	19,295,460	0.78%
Wal-Mart (2)	Retail	14,899,570	0.60%
Clay County Rural Telephone Cooperative	Telecommunication services	11,126,590	0.45%
Schwab Family Associates LP (2)	Accounting	7,384,665	0.30%
AT&T Communications (2)	Telecommunication services	7,370,170	0.30%
Rockies Express Pipeline	Natural gas pipeline	6,489,820	0.26%
Indiana Gas Company (2)	Natural gas utility	6,480,440	0.26%
Duke Energy Indiana (2)	Electric utility	6,399,860	0.26%
CCE Ravinia Farms Forestry LLC/ Cragen Farms LLC (2)	Farming	6,341,320	0.26%
Totals		\$149,044,665	6.04%

(1) The total net assessed valuation of the Library is \$2,465,147,057 for taxes payable in 2018, according to the Morgan County Auditor's office.

(2) Located in a tax increment allocation area ("TIF"); therefore, all or a portion of the taxes are captured as TIF and not distributed to individual taxing units.

Source: County Auditor's office and the DLGF. Individual parcel data is submitted by the County Auditor to the DLGF once a year for preparation of the county abstract.

Note: The following financial statements on pages A-17 - A-19 are excerpts from the Library's January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2017 audit of the Indiana State Board of Accounts. Consequently, these schedules do not include all disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles. A complete audit will be furnished upon request. Current reports are available at http://www.in.gov/sboa/resources/reports/audit/.

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS, AND CASH AND INVESTMENT BALANCES -REGULATORY BASIS

For the Ye	ear Ended	December	31,	2015
------------	-----------	----------	-----	------

	Cash and Investments <u>1/1/2015</u>	<u>Receipts</u>	Disbursements	Cash and Investments <u>12/31/2015</u>
Operating Fund	\$1,172,980	\$1,996,158	\$1,975,046	\$1,194,092
Rainy Day	1,267,973	1,560	85,660	1,183,873
Library Improvement Reserve	1,249,111	301,658		1,550,769
Plac Card	50	195	180	65
Rainy Day Fund Checking	0	85,660	85,660	0
Dewey Dash Fund	2,215	2,017	561	3,671
Evergreen Passthrough Fund	379	2,042	2,045	376
Little Free Libraries Fund	4,781		1,277	3,504
Foundation for Rural Services Grant	100	2,900	3,000	0
Youth Resources Grant	0			0
Barry Schroeder Memorial Fund	0			0
Petty Cash	220	1,096	1,096	220
Cash Change	243			243
Gift Fund	16,787	1,979	4,234	14,532
Children's Gift Fund	1,962	4,958	6,894	26
Morgan Co. Foundation	501	1,900	4,041	(1,640)
2007 Bond Fund	99,266	255,590	232,835	122,021
Withholding	(1,111)	232,116	230,849	156
Totals	\$3,815,457	\$2,889,829	\$2,633,378	\$4,071,908

(Continued on next page)

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

(Cont'd)

SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS, AND CASH AND INVESTMENT BALANCES -

REGULATORY BASIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

	Cash and			Cash and
	Investments			Investments
	<u>1/1/2016</u>	<u>Receipts</u>	Disbursements	12/31/2016
Operating Fund	\$1,194,092	\$1,979,829	\$1,804,792	\$1,369,129
Rainy Day	1,183,873	133,219		1,317,092
Library Improvement Reserve	1,550,769	302,026		1,852,795
Plac Card	65	260	260	65
Rainy Day Fund Checking	0	191,598	167,791	23,807
Dewey Dash Fund	3,671	1,602	864	4,409
Evergreen Passthrough Fund	376	2,489	2,204	661
Little Free Libraries Fund	3,504			3,504
Foundation for Rural Services Grant	0			0
Youth Resources Grant	0	1,000	1,000	0
Barry Schroeder Memorial Fund	0	200	200	0
Petty Cash	220	948	949	219
Cash Change	243			243
Gift Fund	14,532	2,399	2,621	14,310
Children's Gift Fund	26	5,208	4,432	802
Morgan Co. Foundation	(1,640)	3,185	1,324	221
2007 Bond Fund	122,021	243,017	234,735	130,303
Withholding	156	227,655	227,211	600
Totals	\$4,071,908	\$3,094,635	\$2,448,383	\$4,718,160

(Continued on next page)

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

(Cont'd)

SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS, AND CASH AND INVESTMENT BALANCES -

REGULATORY BASIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

	Cash and			Cash and
	Investments			Investments
	<u>1/1/2017</u>	Receipts	Disbursements	12/31/2017
Operating Fund	\$1,369,129	\$2,059,486	\$2,093,175	\$1,335,440
Rainy Day	1,317,092	203,503	50,000	1,470,595
Library Improvement Reserve	1,852,795	305,042		2,157,837
Plac Card	65	325	260	130
Rainy Day Fund Checking	23,807	50,055	61,826	12,036
Dewey Dash Fund	4,409	1,402	2,913	2,898
Evergreen Passthrough Fund	661	2,938	2,964	635
Little Free Libraries Fund	3,504	25	425	3,104
Barry Schroeder Memorial Fund	0	300	300	0
Petty Cash	219	1,271	1,272	218
Cash Change	243			243
Gift Fund	14,310	962	4,443	10,829
Children's Gift Fund	802	4,279	1,946	3,135
Morgan Co. Foundation	221	2,131	2,352	0
2007 Bond Fund	130,303	215,455	236,235	109,523
Withholding	600	235,774	235,303	1,071
Totals	\$4,718,160	\$3,082,948	\$2,693,414	\$5,107,694

The Library certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that this Official Statement, as of its date and as it relates to the Library and its economic and financial condition, (i) is complete and accurate; (ii) does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact; and (iii) does not omit any material facts or information which would make the statements contained herein misleading.

This Official Statement and its execution are duly authorized.

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

By: Company Auguno President, Board of Trusters

Attest: <u>Marow F. Goins</u> Secretary, Board of Trustees

APPENDIX B

FINAL BOND RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Morgan County Public Library (the "Issuer" or "Library") is a library organized and existing under the provisions of IC § 36-12-2; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the "Board') previously found that the present facilities of the Library are not adequate to provide the proper library services to present and future library patrons utilizing its facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Board adopted a preliminary bond resolution determining to issue bonds in an amount not to exceed Two Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$2,200,000) (the "Bonds") for the purpose of providing funds to pay the total cost of the renovation of and improvements to the Main Library Branch, including the construction of an addition and site work in the Library district (the "Project"); and,

WHEREAS, the Library has been advised that the total cost of the Project authorized herein will not exceed the lesser of: (i) \$5,000,000; or (ii) the greater of (a) one percent (1%) of the total gross assessed value of property within the Library district on the last assessment date, or (b) \$1,000,000 and, therefore, the Bonds will not be issued to fund a controlled project, as defined in IC § 6-1.1-20-1.1; and

WHEREAS, the net assessed valuation of taxable property in the Library district, as shown in the last final and complete assessment which was made in the year 2017 for state and county taxes collectible in the year 2018 is \$2,475,831,053 and there is \$120,000 of outstanding indebtedness of the Library district for constitutional debt purposes (excluding the Bonds authorized herein); such assessment and outstanding indebtedness amounts shall be verified at the time of the payment for and delivery of the Bonds; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Issuer that, for the purpose of obtaining funds to be applied on the cost of the Project, there shall be issued and sold the Bonds of the Library to be designated as "General Obligation Bonds of 2018" (or such other name or series designation as determined by the Library's municipal advisor). The Bonds shall be in the principal amount not to exceed Two Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$2,200,000), bearing interest at a rate or rates not exceeding five percent (5.0%) per annum (the exact rate or rates to be determined by bidding), which interest shall be payable on July 15, 2019, and semi-annually thereafter on January 15 and July 15 in each year. Interest on the Bonds shall be numbered consecutively from R-1 upwards, fully registered in the denomination of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000) or integral multiples thereof (or other denominations as requested by the winning bidder), and shall mature or be subject to mandatory redemption on January 15 and July 15 beginning no earlier than July 15, 2019 through no later than January 15, 2033.

All or a portion of the Bonds may be issued as one or more term bonds, upon election of the successful bidder. Such term bonds shall have a stated maturity or maturities as determined by the successful bidder or by negotiation with the purchaser, but in no event later than the last serial date of the Bonds as determined in accordance with the above paragraph. The term bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption and final payment(s) at maturity at 100%

of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on dates and in the amounts hereinafter determined in accordance with the above paragraph.

The original date shall be the date of delivery of the Bonds. The authentication certificate shall be dated when executed by the bank chosen by the Library Director to act as Registrar and Paying Agent (the "Paying Agent").

Interest shall be paid from the interest payment date to which interest has been paid next preceding the date of authentication unless the bond is authenticated on or before the fifteenth day immediately preceding the first interest payment date, in which case interest shall be paid from the original date, or unless the bond is authenticated after the fifteenth day immediately preceding an interest payment date and on or before such interest payment date, in which case interest shall be paid from such interest payment date.

Interest and principal shall be payable as described in the Bonds.

The Bonds are transferable by the registered owner at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent upon surrender and cancellation of a Bond and on presentation of a duly executed written instrument of transfer, and thereupon a new Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity and in authorized denominations will be issued to the transferee or transferees in exchange therefor. The Bonds may be exchanged upon surrender at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent, duly endorsed by the registered owner for the same aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity in authorized denominations as the owner may request.

In the event any Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Library may execute and the Paying Agent may authenticate a new Bond of like date, maturity, and denomination as that mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, which new Bond shall be marked in a manner to distinguish it from the Bond for which it was issued, provided that, in the case of any mutilated Bond, such mutilated Bond shall first be surrendered to the Paying Agent, and in the case of any lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond there shall be first furnished to the Paying Agent evidence of such loss, theft, or destruction satisfactory to the Library and the Paying Agent, together with indemnity satisfactory to them. In the event any such Bond shall have matured, instead of issuing a duplicate Bond, the Library and the Paying Agent may, upon receiving indemnity satisfactory to them, pay the same without surrender thereof. The Library and the Paying Agent may charge the owner of such Bond with their reasonable fees and expenses in connection with delivering the new Bond. Any Bond issued pursuant to this paragraph shall be deemed an original, substitute contractual obligation of the Library, whether or not the lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond shall be found at any time, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this resolution, equally and proportionately with any and all other Bonds issued hereunder.

The Issuer agrees that it will deposit with the Paying Agent funds in an amount equal to the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds which shall become due in accordance with the terms of the Paying Agent Agreement (as hereinafter defined). The form of the Registrar and Paying Agent Agreement (the "Paying Agent Agreement") presented to the Board is hereby approved and any officers of the Board are authorized and directed to execute the Paying Agent Agreement after the sale of the Bonds.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, the Issuer will enter into the Paying Agent Agreement with the Paying Agent in which the Paying Agent agrees that upon any default or insufficiency in the payment of principal and interest as provided in the Paying Agent Agreement, the Paying Agent will immediately, without any direction, security or indemnity file a claim with the Treasurer of the State of Indiana for an amount equal to such principal and interest in default and consents to the filing of any such claim by a Bondholder in the name of the Paying Agent for deposit with the Paying Agent. Filing of the claim with the Treasurer of the State of Indiana, as described above, shall occur on the dates set forth in the Paying Agent Agreement.

If required by the successful bidder, the Issuer has hereby authorized that the Bonds may be held by a central depository system pursuant to an agreement between the Issuer and The Depository Trust Company, and have transfers of the Bonds effected by book-entry on the books of the central depository system (unless otherwise requested by the winning bidder). Upon initial issuance, the ownership of such Bonds is expected to be registered in the register kept by the Registrar in the name of CEDE & CO., as nominee (the "Nominee") of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"). However, upon the successful bidder's request, the Bonds may be delivered and held by physical delivery as an alternative to DTC.

With respect to the Bonds registered in the register kept by the Paying Agent in the name of the Nominee, the Issuer and the Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation to any other holders or owners (including any beneficial owner ("Beneficial Owner") of the Bonds with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, the Nominee, or any Beneficial Owner with respect to ownership questions, (ii) the delivery to any Bondholder (including any Beneficial Owner) or any other person, other than DTC, of any notice with respect to the Bonds including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any Bondholder (including any Beneficial Owner) or any other person, other than DTC, of any amount with respect to the principal of, or premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds except as otherwise provided herein.

No person other than DTC shall receive an authenticated Bond evidencing an obligation of the Issuer to make payments of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds pursuant to this resolution. The Issuer and the Paying Agent may treat as and deem DTC or the Nominee to be the absolute Bondholder of each of the Bonds for the purpose of (i) payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds; (ii) giving notices of redemption and other notices permitted to be given to Bondholders with respect to such Bonds; (iii) registering transfers with respect to such Bonds; (iv) obtaining any consent or other action required or permitted to be taken of or by Bondholders; (v) voting; and (vi) for all other purposes whatsoever. The Paying Agent shall pay all principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments shall be valid and effective fully to satisfy and discharge the Issuer's and the Paying Agent's obligations with respect to principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. Upon delivery by DTC to the Issuer of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new Nominee in place of the Nominee, and subject to the provisions herein with respect to consents, the words "CEDE & CO." in this resolution shall refer to such new Nominee of DTC. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof to the contrary, so long as any Bond is registered in the name of the Nominee, all payments with respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds and all notices with respect to such Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in a representation letter from the Issuer to DTC.

Upon receipt by the Issuer of written notice from DTC to the effect that DTC is unable or unwilling to discharge its responsibilities and no substitute depository willing to undertake the functions of DTC hereunder can be found which is willing and able to undertake such functions upon reasonable and customary terms, then the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the register of the Issuer kept by the Paying Agent in the name of the Nominee, but may be registered in whatever name or names the Bondholders transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of this resolution.

If the Issuer determines that it is in the best interest of the Bondholders that they be able to obtain certificates for the fully registered Bonds, the Issuer may notify DTC and the Paying Agent, whereupon DTC will notify the Beneficial Owners of the availability through DTC of certificates for the Bonds. In such event, the Paying Agent shall prepare, authenticate, transfer and exchange certificates for the Bonds as requested by DTC and any Beneficial Owners in appropriate amounts, and whenever DTC requests the Issuer and the Paying Agent to do so, the Paying Agent and the Issuer will cooperate with DTC by taking appropriate action after reasonable notice (i) to make available one or more separate certificates evidencing the fully registered Bonds of any Beneficial Owner's DTC account or (ii) to arrange for another securities depository to maintain custody of certificates for and evidencing the Bonds.

If the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the name of a depository trust company, the Paying Agent shall cause the Bonds to be printed in blank in such number as the Paying Agent shall determine to be necessary or customary; provided, however, that the Paying Agent shall not be required to have such Bonds printed until it shall have received from the Issuer indemnification for all costs and expenses associated with such printing.

In connection with any notice or other communication to be provided to Bondholders by the Issuer or the Paying Agent with respect to any consent or other action to be taken by Bondholders, the Issuer or the Paying Agent, as the case may be, shall establish a record date for such consent or other action and give DTC notice of such record date not less than fifteen (15) calendar days in advance of such record date to the extent possible.

So long as the Bonds are registered in the name of DTC or the Nominee or any substitute Nominee, the Issuer and the Paying Agent shall be entitled to request and to rely upon a certificate or other written representation from the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds or from DTC on behalf of such Beneficial Owners stating the amount of their respective beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds and setting forth the consent, advice, direction, demand or vote of the Beneficial Owners as of a record date selected by the Paying Agent and DTC, to the same extent as if such consent, advice, direction, demand or vote were made by the Bondholders for purposes of this resolution and the Issuer and the Paying Agent shall for such purposes treat the Beneficial Owners as the Bondholders. Along with any such certificate or representation, the Paying Agent may request DTC to deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Paying Agent a list of all Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, together with the dollar amount of each Beneficial Owner's interest in the Bonds and the current addresses of such Beneficial Owners.

So long as the Bonds are registered in the name of DTC or the Nominee or any substitute Nominee, the Issuer and the Paying Agent shall be entitled to request and to rely upon a certificate or other written representation from the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds or from DTC on behalf of such Beneficial Owners stating the amount of their respective beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds and setting forth the consent, advice, direction, demand or vote of the Beneficial Owners as of a record date selected by the Paying Agent and DTC, to the same extent as if such consent, advice, direction, demand or vote were made by the Bondholders for purposes of this resolution and the Issuer and the Paying Agent shall for such purposes treat the Beneficial Owners as the Bondholders. Along with any such certificate or representation, the Registrar may request DTC to deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Paying Agent a list of all Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, together with the dollar amount of each Beneficial Owner's interest in the Bonds and the current addresses of such Beneficial Owners.

The Paying Agent may at any time resign as Paying Agent by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Issuer and to each registered owner of the Bonds then outstanding, and such resignation will take effect at the end of such thirty (30) days or upon the earlier appointment of a successor Paying Agent by the Library. Such notice to the Issuer may be served personally or be sent by first-class or registered mail. The Paying Agent may be removed at any time as Paying Agent by the Issuer, in which event the Issuer may appoint a successor Paying Agent. The Paying Agent shall notify each registered owner of the Bonds then outstanding of the removal of the Paying Agent. Notices to registered owners of the Bonds shall be deemed to be given when mailed by first-class mail to the addresses of such registered owners as they appear on the Registration Record. Any predecessor Paying Agent shall deliver all the Bonds, cash and investments related thereto in its possession and the Registration Record to the successor Paying Agent. At all times, the same entity shall serve as registrar and paying agent.

In order to provide for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, there shall be levied in each year upon all taxable property in the Library district, real and personal, and collected a tax in an amount and in such manner sufficient to meet and pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they become due, and the proceeds of this tax are hereby pledged solely to the payment of the Bonds. Such tax shall be deposited into the Library's Debt Service Fund and used to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due, together with any fiscal agency charges. If the funds deposited into the Debt Service Fund are then insufficient to meet and pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they become due, then the Library covenants to transfer other available funds of the Library to meet and pay the principal and interest then due on the Bonds.

The Library represents and covenants that the Bonds herein authorized, when combined with other outstanding indebtedness of the Library at the time of issuance of the Bonds, will not exceed any applicable constitutional or statutory limitation on the Library's indebtedness.

The Issuer shall have the right, at its option, to redeem, according to the procedure hereinafter provided, all or any part of the Bonds, in such order of maturities as selected by the

Issuer and by lot within maturities (each \$5,000 of principal shall be considered a bond for this purpose), on any date on or after January 15, 2029, at face value plus interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

Official notice of such redemption (the "Redemption Notice") shall be mailed by the Issuer or Paying Agent to the registered owners of all Bonds to be redeemed, not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption. The Redemption Notice shall, with substantial accuracy:

(a) Designate the date and place of redemption, which is to be the offices of the Paying Agent; and

(b) Designate the Bonds to be redeemed; and

(c) State that on the designated date fixed for redemption the Bonds shall be redeemed by the payment of the applicable redemption price set forth in this resolution, and that from and after the date so fixed for such redemption interest on the Bonds called for redemption shall cease.

The cost and expenses of the preparation and mailing of the Notice of Redemption shall be paid by the Issuer.

When the Redemption Notice has been mailed as above provided, the Bonds designated for redemption shall, on the date specified in the Notice, become due and payable at the applicable redemption price, and on presentation and surrender of such Bonds in accordance with the Redemption Notice, at the place at which the same are expressed in the Redemption Notice to be redeemable, such Bonds shall be redeemed by the Paying Agent on behalf of the Issuer by the payment of the redemption price to registered owners out of funds held by the Paying Agent for that purpose. From and after the date of redemption, unless default shall be made in the redemption of the Bonds upon presentation, interest on bonds designated for redemption shall cease. If not so paid on presentation thereof, the Bonds shall continue to bear interest at the rate therein specified. All Bonds redeemed shall be cancelled and destroyed. Bonds redeemed shall not be reissued, nor shall any bonds be issued in lieu thereof.

In addition to the foregoing official notice, further notice shall be given by the Issuer as set out below, but no defect in the further notice nor any failure to give all or any portion of the further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if a Redemption Notice is given as stated above.

(a) Each further Redemption Notice given hereunder shall contain the information required above for an official Redemption Notice plus (i) the CUSIP numbers of all Bonds being redeemed; (ii) the date of issue of the Bonds as originally issued; (iii) the rate of interest of each Bond being redeemed; (iv) the maturity date of each Bond being redeemed; and (v) any other descriptive information needed to accurately identify the Bonds being redeemed.

(b) Each further Redemption Notice shall be sent at least 35 days before the redemption date by registered or certified mail or overnight delivery service to all registered securities depositories then in the business of holding substantial amounts of obligations of types

comprising the bonds (such depository now being DTC).

(c) Upon the payment of the redemption price of Bonds being redeemed, each check or other transfer of funds issued for such purpose shall bear the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and maturity, the Bonds being redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer.

If any Bond is issued as a term bond, the Paying Agent shall credit against the mandatory sinking fund requirement for any term bonds, and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation, in the order determined by the Library, any term bonds maturing on the same date which have previously been redeemed (other than as a result of a previous mandatory redemption requirement) or delivered to the Registrar for cancellation or purchased for cancellation by the Paying Agent and not theretofore applied as a credit against any redemption obligation. Each term bond so delivered or canceled shall be credited by the Paying Agent at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the mandatory sinking fund obligation on such mandatory sinking fund date, and any excess of such amount shall be credited on future redemption obligations, and the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed by operation of the mandatory sinking fund requirement shall be accordingly reduced; provided, however, the Paying Agent shall credit only such Bonds maturing as term bonds to the extent received on or before forty-five (45) days preceding the applicable mandatory redemption date as stated above.

Each Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000) (or other denominations as requested by the successful bidder, as permitted by law) principal amount shall be considered a separate Bond for purposes of redemption. If less than an entire maturity is called for redemption, the Bonds to be called shall be selected by lot by the Paying Agent.

Notice of redemption shall be mailed to the address of the registered owner as shown on the Registration Record of the Paying Agent, as of the date which is forty-five (45) days prior to the date fixed for redemption, not less than thirty (30) days prior to such redemption date, unless notice is waived by the owner of the Bond or Bonds redeemed. The notice shall specify the date and place of redemption and sufficient identification of the Bonds called for redemption. The place of redemption may be determined by the Library. Interest on the Bonds so called for redemption on the redemption date fixed in such notice if sufficient funds are available at the place of redemption to pay the redemption price, including accrued interest and redemption premium, if any, to the redemption date, on the date so named. Failure to give such notice by mailing, or any defect in such notice, with respect to any Bond shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for redemption of other Bonds.

If the Bonds are not presented for payment or redemption on the date fixed therefor, the Library may deposit in trust with the Paying Agent, an amount sufficient to pay such Bond or the redemption price, as the case may be, including accrued interest to the date of such payment or redemption, and thereafter the registered owner shall look only to the funds so deposited in trust with the Paying Agent for payment, and the Library shall have no further obligation or liability in respect thereto.

If, when the Bonds or any portion thereof shall have become due and payable in accordance with their terms, and the whole amount of the principal and the interest so due and

payable upon such Bonds or any portion thereof then outstanding shall be paid, or (i) cash, or (ii) direct non-callable obligations of (including obligations issued or held in book entry form on the books of) the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America, and securities fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to the timely payment of principal and interest by the United States of America, the principal of and the interest on which when due without reinvestment will provide sufficient money, or (iii) any combination of the foregoing, shall be held irrevocably in trust for such purpose, and provision shall also be made for paying all fees and expenses for the payment, then and in that case the Bonds or such designated portion thereof shall no longer be deemed outstanding or secured by this resolution.

The Bonds shall be executed in the name of Issuer by the manual or facsimile signature of the any member of the Board of the Library, and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Board. In case any official whose signature or facsimile of whose signature shall appear on the Bonds shall cease to be such officer before the issuance, authentication or delivery of such Bonds, such signature or such facsimile shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if such officer had remained in office until delivery.

No bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose, unless and until authenticated by the Paying Agent. Such authentication may be executed by an authorized representative of the Paying Agent, but it shall not be necessary that the same person authenticate all of the Bonds issued. The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the person in whose name a bond is registered on the Bond Registration Record as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary.

In order to preserve the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes and as an inducement to purchasers of the Bonds, the Issuer represents, covenants and agrees that:

No person or entity, other than the Issuer or another governmental unit, will use proceeds of the bonds or property financed by the bond proceeds other than as a member of the general public. No person or entity, other than the Issuer or another governmental unit, will own property financed by bond proceeds or will have actual or beneficial use of such property pursuant to a lease, a management or incentive payment contract or any other type of arrangement that differentiates that person's or entity's use of such property from the use by the public at large.

No bond proceeds will be loaned to any entity or person. No bond proceeds will be transferred, directly or indirectly, or deemed transferred to a nongovernmental person in any manner that would in substance constitute a loan of the bond proceeds.

The Issuer will, to the extent necessary to preserve the exclusion of interest on the bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, rebate all required arbitrage profits on bond proceeds or other moneys treated as bond proceeds to the federal government as provided in Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date hereof (the "Code") and will set aside such moneys in a Rebate Account to be held by the Treasurer in trust for such purpose.

The Issuer will file an information report form 8038-G with the Internal Revenue Service as required by Section 149 of the Code.

The Issuer will not take any action nor fail to take any action with respect to the bonds that would result in the loss of exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the bonds pursuant to Section 103 of the Code, as existing on the date of issuance of the bonds, nor will the Issuer act in any other manner which would adversely affect such exclusion.

The Issuer represents that it reasonably expects that tax-exempt bonds, warrants and other evidences of indebtedness issued by or on behalf of it or any subordinate entity, during the calendar year in which the bonds will be issued will be less than \$10,000,000 principal amount. This amount includes all obligations issued by, or on behalf of the Issuer and subordinate entities, including building corporation bonds. At least 95% of the net proceeds of the bonds shall be used for governmental activities of Issuer. The Issuer hereby designates the bonds as qualified tax exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, relating to the disallowance of 100% of the deduction for interest expense allocable to tax-exempt obligations acquired after August 7, 1986.

The bonds shall be issued in substantially the following form, all blanks to be filled in properly prior to delivery:

Registered				Registered
No				\$
	UNIT	ED STATES OF .	AMERICA	
	State of India		County of Morgan	
	MORGAN	N COUNTY PUB	LIC LIBRARY	
		L OBLIGATION I		
Interest	Maturity	Original	Authentication	
Rate	Date	Date	Date	CUSIP
See Exhibit A	See Exhibit A	, 2018	, 2018	

Registered Owner:

Principal Sum:

Morgan County Public Library (the "Issuer" or "Library"), a library organized and existing under the laws of the State of Indiana, in Morgan County, Indiana, for value received, hereby acknowledges itself indebted and promises to pay to the Registered Owner (named above) or to registered assigns, the Principal Sum set forth above in installments set forth on <u>Exhibit A</u> on the Maturity Dates set forth on <u>Exhibit A</u> (unless this bond be subject to and be called for redemption prior to maturity as hereinafter provided) and to pay interest thereon at the Interest Rate per annum set forth on <u>Exhibit A</u> from the interest payment date to which interest has been paid next preceding the date of authentication hereof unless this

bond is authenticated on or before June 30, 2019, in which case interest shall be paid from the Original Date, or unless this bond is authenticated after the fifteenth day immediately preceding an interest payment date and on or before such interest payment date, in which case interest shall be paid from such interest payment date, which interest is payable on July 15, 2019 and each January 15 and July 15 thereafter until the principal has been paid. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.

Interest shall be payable by check mailed one business day prior to the interest payment date to registered owners or by wire transfer of immediately available funds on the interest payment date to depositories shown as registered owners. Payment shall be made to the person or depository in whose name this bond is registered as of the fifteenth day immediately preceding such interest payment date. Principal of this bond shall be payable upon presentation of this bond at the principal corporate trust office of the bank selected by the Director of the Library (the "Registrar and Paying Agent") or by wire transfer of immediately available funds to depositories who present the bonds to the Registrar and Paying Agent at least two business days prior to the payment date in lawful money of the United States of America. If the payment date occurs on a date when financial institutions are not open for business, the wire transfer shall be made on the next succeeding business day. The Registrar and Paying Agent shall wire transfer payments by 1:00 p.m. (New York City time) so such payments are received at the depository by 2:30 p.m. (New York City time).

This bond is one of an issue of bonds aggregating Two Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$2,200,000), of like tenor and effect, except as to numbering, authentication date, denomination, interest rate, and date of maturity, issued by Issuer pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Trustees (the "Board") of the Issuer on August 27, 2018 as supplemented on September 24, 2018 (as supplemented, the "Resolution"), and in strict accordance with the governing statutes of the State of Indiana, particularly Indiana Code 36-12-3 (the "Act"), for the purpose of providing funds to be applied on the cost of renovation of and improvements to the Main Library Branch, including the construction of an additional site work in the library district. The owner of this Bond, by the acceptance thereof, agrees to all the terms and provisions contained in the Resolution and the Act.

The bonds of this issue may be redeemed prior to maturity at the option of the Issuer in whole, or in part in such order of maturity as the Issuer shall direct and by lot within maturities (each \$5,000 [\$100,000] of principal shall be considered as a bond for this purpose), on any date on or after January 15, 2029 at face value plus in each case accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.

The Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption on January 15 and July 15 in accordance with the following schedules:

Bonds Maturin	g	Bonds Matur	ing
Date	Amount	Date	Amount
*		*	

*denotes final maturity

Notice of redemption identifying the bonds to be redeemed will be mailed to the registered owners of bonds to be redeemed.

If this bond is called for redemption, and payment is made to the Registrar and Paying Agent in accordance with the terms of the Resolution, this bond shall cease to bear interest from and after the date fixed for the redemption in the call.

This bond shall be initially issued in a Book Entry System (as defined in the Resolution). The provisions of this bond and of the Resolution are subject in all respects to the provisions of the Letter of Representations between the Issuer and The Depository Trust Company, or any substitute agreement, effecting such Book Entry System.

This bond is transferable in accordance with the Book Entry System or, if no such system is in effect, by the Registered Owner hereof at the principal corporate trust office of the Registrar and Paying Agent, upon surrender and cancellation of this bond and on presentation of a duly executed written instrument of transfer and thereupon a new bond or bonds of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity and in authorized denominations will be issued to the transferee or transferees in exchange therefor. This bond may be exchanged upon surrender hereof at the principal corporate trust office of the Registrar and Paying Agent, duly endorsed by the Registered Owner for the same aggregate principal amount of bonds of the same maturity in authorized denominations as the owner may request.

The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof.

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT AND THE RESOLUTION, THE PRINCIPAL OF THIS BOND AND ALL OTHER BONDS OF THE BOND ISSUE AND THE INTEREST DUE THEREON ARE PAYABLE AS A GENERAL OBLIGATION OF THE LIBRARY, FROM AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAXES TO BE LEVIED ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE LIBRARY; HOWEVER, THE ISSUER'S COLLECTION OF THE LEVY MAY BE LIMITED BY OPERATION OF INDIANA CODE 6-1.1-20.6 WHICH PROVIDES TAXPAYERS WITH TAX CREDITS FOR PROPERTY TAXES ATTRIBUTABLE TO DIFFERENT CLASSES OF PROPERTY IN AN AMOUNT THAT EXCEEDS CERTAIN PERCENTAGES OF THE GROSS ASSESSED VALUE OF THAT PROPERTY. UPON THE FAILURE OF THE ISSUER TO MAKE DEBT

SERVICE WHEN DUE AND UPON NOTICE AND CLAIM, THE INTERCEPT PROVISIONS OF INDIANA CODE § 20-48-1-11 WILL APPLY.

The full faith and credit of the Library are hereby irrevocably pledged to the punctual payment of the principal of and the interest on this bond according to its terms. The Library covenants that it will cause a property tax for the payment of the principal of and interest on this bond to be levied, collected, appropriated and applied for that purpose as set forth in IC § 6-1.1-18.5-8. The bonds are subject to IC § 6-1.1-20.6 regarding certain tax credits and the State of Indiana intercept of funds to pay debt service on the bonds.

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to be done precedent to and in the execution, issuance and delivery of this bond have been done and performed in regular and due form as provided by law; that this bond and the total issue of the bonds is within every limit of indebtedness as prescribed by the constitution and laws of the State of Indiana.

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until authenticated by the Registrar and Paying Agent.

The Issuer has designated this bond a qualified tax-exempt obligation for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the Original Date of the Bonds.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Issuer has caused this bond to be executed in its name by the manual or facsimile signature of the President of its Board of Trustees and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of said Board.

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

By: _____

President, Board of Trustees

Attest:

Secretary, Board of Trustees

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This bond is one of the bonds referred to in the within mentioned resolution.

as Registrar and Paying Agent

By:

Authorized Representative

[End of Bond Form]

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that prior to the sale of said bonds at public sale, notice of such sale shall be published once each week for two (2) weeks in the <u>Reporter Times</u> and the <u>Mooresville-Times</u>, the first of said publications to be at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date fixed for the sale of said bonds and the last at least three (3) days prior, and in the <u>Court and</u> <u>Commercial Record</u>. At the time fixed for the opening of bids, the Board or its designated committee shall meet, all bids shall be opened in the presence of the Board or such committee, and the award shall be made by the Board or the Committee.

The bond sale notice, when published, shall provide that each bid shall be in a sealed envelope marked "Bid for General Obligation Bonds of 2018," and the successful bidder shall provide a certified or cashier's check in the amount of Two Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$2,200,000), payable to Issuer, to insure the good faith of the bidder. In the event the successful bidder shall fail or refuse to accept delivery of the bonds when ready for delivery, said check and the proceeds thereof shall be retained by the Library as its liquidated damages. Said notice shall also provide that bidders for said bonds shall name the purchase price for the bonds, not less than 99.5% of par and the rate or rates of interest which the bonds are to bear, not exceeding five percent (5.0%) per annum; that said interest rate or rates shall be in multiples of $1/100^{\text{th}}$, or $1/8^{\text{th}}$ of one percent (1%); that the interest rate named for any maturity shall be equal to or greater than the immediately preceding maturity; and that the highest bidder shall be the one who offers the lowest net interest cost to the Issuer, to be determined by computing the total interest on all of the bonds to their maturities and deducting therefrom the premium bid, if any, or adding the discount bid, if any. The bond sale notice shall state that the opinion of Ice Miller LLP, bond counsel, approving the legality of the Bonds, will be furnished to the purchaser at the expense of the Library, so that the Library will receive due credit therefor in the bidding. The notice may contain such other terms and conditions as the attorney for the Issuer shall deem advisable.

The Library Assistant Director, Library Business Manager and a representative of H.J. Umbaugh & Associates, Certified Public Accountants, LLP are appointed as a bid committee and are authorized to award the bonds to the buyer consistent with this resolution.

Subject to the terms and provisions contained in this paragraph and not otherwise, the owners of not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding shall have the right, from time to time, anything contained in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, to consent to and approve the adoption by the

Library of such resolution or resolutions supplemental hereto as shall be deemed necessary or desirable by the Library for the purpose of amending in any particular any of the terms or provisions contained in this Resolution, or in any supplemental resolution; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall permit or be construed as permitting without the consent of all affected owners of the Bonds:

(a) An extension of the maturity of the principal of or interest on any Bond without the consent of the holder of each Bond so affected; or

(b) A reduction in the principal amount of any Bond or the rate of interest thereon or a change in the monetary medium in which such amounts are payable, without the consent of the holder of each Bond so affected; or

(c) A preference or priority of any Bond over any other Bond, without the consent of the holders of all Bonds then outstanding; or

(d) A reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required for consent to such supplemental resolution, without the consent of the holders of all Bonds then outstanding.

If the Library shall desire to obtain any such consent, it shall cause the Registrar to mail a notice, postage prepaid, to the addresses appearing on the Registration Record. Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the proposed supplemental resolution and shall state that a copy thereof is on file at the office of the Registrar for inspection by all owners of the Bonds. The Registrar shall not, however, be subject to any liability to any owners of the Bonds by reason of its failure to mail such notice, and any such failure shall not affect the validity of such supplemental resolution when consented to and approved as herein provided.

Whenever at any time within one year after the date of the mailing of such notice, the Library shall receive any instrument or instruments purporting to be executed by the owners of the Bonds of not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66-2/3%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed supplemental resolution described in such notice, and shall specifically consent to and approve the adoption thereof in substantially the form of the copy thereof referred to in such notice as on file with the Registrar, thereupon, but not otherwise, the Library may adopt such supplemental resolution in substantially such form, without liability or responsibility to any owners of the Bonds, whether or not such owners shall have consented thereto.

No owner of any Bond shall have any right to object to the adoption of such supplemental resolution or to object to any of the terms and provisions contained therein or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the propriety of the adoption thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Library or its officers from adopting the same, or from taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof. Upon the adoption of any supplemental resolution pursuant to the provisions of this section, this Resolution shall be, and shall be deemed, modified and amended in accordance therewith, and the respective rights, duties and obligations under this Resolution of the Library and all owners of Bonds then outstanding shall thereafter be determined, exercised

and enforced in accordance with this Resolution, subject in all respects to such modifications and amendments.

Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing provisions of this Resolution, the rights, duties and obligations of the Library and of the owners of the Bonds, and the terms and provisions of the Bonds and this Resolution, or any supplemental resolution, may be modified or amended in any respect with the consent of the Library and the consent of the owners of all the Bonds then outstanding.

Without notice to or consent of the owners of the Bonds, the Library may, from time to time and at any time, adopt such resolutions supplemental hereto as shall not be inconsistent with the terms and provisions hereof (which supplemental resolutions shall thereafter form a part hereof),

(a) to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Resolution or in any supplemental resolution; or

(b) to grant to or confer upon the owners of the Bonds any additional rights, remedies, powers, authority or security that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the owners of the Bonds; or

(c) to procure a rating on the Bonds from a nationally recognized securities rating agency designated in such supplemental resolution, if such supplemental resolution will not adversely affect the owners of the Bonds; or

(d) to provide for the refunding or advance refunding of the Bonds; or

(e) to make any other change which, in the determination of the Board in its sole discretion, is not to the prejudice of the owners of the Bonds.

If any section, paragraph or provision of this resolution shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this resolution.

All resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this resolution, are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed or amended.

This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and signing by any officers of the Board.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the form of the Master Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking") is hereby approved and the officers are authorized and directed to execute such Undertaking and any and all documents necessary to issue and deliver the Bonds including but not limited to a bond purchase agreement or bond placement agreement. Passed and Adopted this 24th day of September, 2018.

ATTEST:

President, Board of Trustees

Secretary, Board of Trustees

APPENDIX C

November 15, 2018

J.J.B. Hilliard, W.L. Lyons, LLC Indianapolis, Indiana

Re: Morgan County Public Library General Obligation Bonds of 2018 Total Issue: \$2,200,000 Original Date: November 15, 2018

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as bond counsel in connection with the issuance by Morgan County Public Library, Martinsville, Indiana (the "Library" or "Issuer"), of \$2,200,000 of its General Obligation Bonds of 2018 dated November 15, 2018 (the "Bonds"). We have examined the law and the certified transcript of proceedings of the Issuer relative to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds and such other papers as we deem necessary to render this opinion. We have relied upon the certified transcript of proceedings and certificates of public officials, including the Issuer's tax covenants and representations ("Tax Representations"), and we have not undertaken to verify any facts by independent investigation.

We have not been engaged nor have we undertaken to review the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of the Preliminary Official Statement dated October 19, 2018 or the Final Official Statement dated October 25, 2018 (collectively, the "Official Statement") or any other offering material relating to the Bonds, and we express no opinion relating thereto.

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion, as of the date hereof, as follows:

1. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the Library.

2. All taxable property in the Library district is subject to ad valorem taxation to pay the debt service; however, the Library's collection of the levy may be limited by operation of Indiana Code § 6-1.1-20.6, which provides taxpayers with tax credits for property taxes attributable to different classes of property in an amount that exceeds certain percentages of the gross assessed value of that property. The Library is required by law to fully fund the payment of debt service on the Bonds in an amount sufficient to pay the debt service, regardless of any reduction in property tax collections due to the application of such tax credits.

J.J.B. Hilliard, W.L. Lyons, LLC November 15, 2018

3. Under statutes, decisions, regulations and rulings existing on this date, the interest on the Bonds is exempt from income taxation in the State of Indiana (the "State"). This opinion relates only to the exemption of interest on the Bonds from State income taxation.

4. Under federal statutes, decisions, regulations and rulings existing on this date, the interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income of the owners for federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date hereof (the "Code") and is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax, although it is included in adjusted current earnings in calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income for the taxable years that began prior to January 1, 2018. This opinion is conditioned upon compliance by the Library subsequent to the date hereof with its Tax Representations. Failure to comply with the Tax Representations could cause interest on the Bonds to lose the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to their date of issue.

It is to be understood that the rights of the registered owners of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof may be subject to (i) bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights heretofore or hereafter enacted and that their enforcement may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of law and equity; and (ii) the valid exercise of the constitutional powers of the State and the United States of America.

Very truly yours,

APPENDIX D

MASTER CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

This MASTER CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING dated as of October 25, 2018 (the "Master Undertaking") is executed and delivered by Morgan County Public Library (the "Obligor") for the purpose of permitting various Underwriters (as hereinafter defined) of the Obligations (as hereinafter defined) issued by or on behalf of the Obligor from time to time to purchase such Obligations in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") Rule 15c2-12, as amended (the "SEC Rule");

WITNESSETH THAT:

Section 1. <u>Definitions</u>. The words and terms defined in this Master Undertaking shall have the meanings herein specified unless the context or use clearly indicates another or different meaning or intent. Those words and terms not expressly defined herein and used herein with initial capitalization where rules of grammar do not otherwise require capitalization, shall have the meanings assigned to them in the SEC Rule.

- (1) "Holder" or any similar term, when used with reference to any Obligation or Obligations, means any person who shall be the registered owner of any outstanding Obligation, or the owner of a beneficial interest in such Obligation.
- (2) "EMMA" is Electronic Municipal Market Access System established by the MSRB.
- (3) "Final Official Statement" means, with respect to any Obligations, the final Official Statement relating to such Obligations, including any document or set of documents included by specific reference to such document or documents available to the public on EMMA.
- (4) "MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.
- (5) "Obligated Person" means any person, including the Obligor, who is either generally or through an enterprise, fund, or account of such person committed by contract or other arrangement to support payment of all or a part of the obligations on the Obligations (other than providers of municipal bond insurance, letters of credit, or other liquidity facilities). All Obligated Persons with respect to Obligations currently are identified in Section 3 below.
- (6) "Obligations" means the various obligations issued by or on behalf of Morgan County Public Library, as listed on <u>Exhibit A</u>, as the same shall be amended or supplemented from time to time.
- (7) "Underwriter" or "Underwriters" means, with respect to any Obligations, the underwriter or underwriters of such Obligations pursuant to the applicable purchase agreement for such Obligations.

Section 2. <u>Obligations; Term</u>. (a) This Master Undertaking applies to the Obligations.

(b) The term of this Master Undertaking extends from the date of delivery of the Master Undertaking by the Obligor to the earlier of: (i) the date of the last payment of principal or redemption price, if any, of, and interest to accrue on, all Obligations; or (ii) the date all Obligations are defeased under the respective trust indentures or respective resolutions.

Section 3. <u>Obligated Persons</u>. The Obligor hereby represents and warrants as of the date hereof that the only Obligated Person with respect to the Obligations is the Obligor. If any such person is no longer committed by contract or other arrangement to support payment of the Obligations, such person shall no longer be considered an Obligated Person within the meaning of the SEC Rule and the continuing obligation under this Master Undertaking to provide annual financial information and notices of events shall terminate with respect to such person.

The Obligor hereby represents and warrants that no Obligated Person is an obligated person (within the meaning of the SEC Rule) with respect to more than \$10,000,000 in aggregate amount of outstanding Obligations (excluding municipal securities or other instruments that were offered in a transaction exempt from the SEC Rule pursuant to paragraph (d)(1) of the SEC Rule).

The Obligor hereby covenants that, if and when the Obligor becomes an Obligated Person with respect to more than 10,000,000 in aggregate amount of outstanding Obligations, the Obligor will modify this Master Undertaking pursuant to Section 11 herein in order to comply with the disclosure requirements of Section (b)(5) of the SEC Rule.

Section 4. <u>Provision of Financial Information</u>. (a) The Obligor hereby undertakes to provide, with respect to the Obligations, the following financial information, in each case (i) in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB and (ii) accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB:

- (1) To the MSRB, the audited financial statements of the Obligor as prepared and examined by the Indiana State Board of Accounts on a biennial basis for each period of two fiscal years, together with the opinion of the reviewers thereof and all notes thereto (collectively, the "Audited Information"), by the June 30 immediately following each biennial period. Such disclosure of Audited Information shall first occur by June 30, 2019, and shall be made by June 30 every two years thereafter, if the Audited Information is delivered to the Obligor by June 30 of each biennial period. If, however, the Obligor has not received the Audited Information by such June 30 biennial date, the Obligor agrees to (i) post a voluntary notice to the MSRB by June 30 of such biennial period that the Audited Information has not been received, and (ii) post the Audited Information within 60 days of the Obligor's receipt thereof; and
- (2) To the MSRB, no later than June 30 of each year beginning June 30, 2019, the most recent unaudited annual financial information for the Obligor (the "Annual Information") which Annual Information may be provided in such format and under such headings as the Library deems appropriate.

(b) If any Annual Information or Audited Information relating to the Obligor referred to in paragraph (a) of this Section 4 no longer can be provided because the operations to which they relate have been materially changed or discontinued, a statement to that effect, provided by the Obligor to the MSRB, along with any other Annual Information or Audited Information required to be provided under this Master Agreement, shall satisfy the undertaking to provide such Annual Information or Audited Information. To the extent available, the Obligor shall cause to be filed along with the other Annual Information or Audited Information operating data similar to that which can no longer be provided.

(c) The disclosure may be accompanied by a certificate of an authorized representative of the Obligor in the form of <u>Exhibit B</u> attached hereto.

(d) The Obligor agrees to make a good faith effort to obtain Annual Information and Audited Information. However, failure to provide any component of Annual Information and Audited Information, because it is not available to the Obligor on the date by which Annual Information is required to be provided hereunder, shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Master Undertaking. The Obligor further agrees to supplement the Annual Information or Audited Information filing when such data is available.

(e) Annual Information or Audited Information required to be provided pursuant to this Section 4 may be provided by a specific reference to such Annual Information or Audited Information already prepared and previously provided to the MSRB. Any information included by reference shall also be (i) available to the public on EMMA at <u>www.emma.msrb.org</u>, or (ii) filed with the SEC.

(f) All continuing disclosure filings under this Master Undertaking shall be made in accordance with the terms and requirements of the MSRB at the time of such filing. As of the date of this Master Undertaking, the SEC has approved the submission of continuing disclosure filings on EMMA, and the MSRB has requested that such filings be made by transmitting such filings electronically to EMMA currently found at <u>www.emma.msrb.org</u>.

Section 5. <u>Accounting Principles</u>. The Annual Information will be prepared on a cash basis as prescribed by the State Board of Accounts, as in effect from time to time, as described in the auditors' report and notes accompanying the audited financial statements of the Obligor or those mandated by state law from time to time. The Audited Information of the Obligor, as described in Section 4(a)(1) hereof, will be prepared in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in <u>Government Auditing Standards</u> issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Section 6. <u>Reportable Events</u>. The Obligor undertakes to disclose the following events within 10 business days of the occurrence of any of the following events, if material (which determination of materiality shall be made by the Obligor in accordance with the standards established by federal securities laws), to the MSRB, in each case (i) in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB and (ii) accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB:

- (1) non-payment related defaults;
- (2) modifications to rights of Holders;
- (3) bond calls;
- (4) release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Obligations;
- (5) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition, or certain asset sales, involving the obligated person, or entry into or termination of a definitive agreement relating to the foregoing; and
- (6) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee.

The Obligor undertakes to disclose the following events, within 10 business days of the occurrence of any of the following events, regardless of materiality, to the MSRB, in each case (i) in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB and (ii) accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB:

- (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies;
- (2) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
- (3) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
- (4) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
- (5) defeasances;
- (6) rating changes;
- (7) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the status of the Obligations, the issuance by the IRS of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material events, notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Obligations;
- (8) tender offers; and
- (9) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person.

The disclosure may be accompanied by a certificate of an authorized representative of the Obligor in the form of Exhibit C attached hereto.

Section 7. <u>Use of Agent</u>. The Obligor may, at its sole discretion, utilize an agent (the "Dissemination Agent") in connection with the dissemination of any information required to be provided by the Obligor pursuant to the SEC Rule and the terms of this Master Undertaking. If a Dissemination Agent is selected for these purposes, the Obligor shall provide prior written notice thereof (as well as notice of replacement or dismissal of such agent) to EMMA, and the MSRB.

Further, the Obligor may, at its sole discretion, retain counsel or others with expertise in securities matters for the purpose of assisting the Obligor in making judgments with respect to the scope of its obligations hereunder and compliance therewith, all in order to further the purposes of this Master Undertaking.

Section 8. <u>Failure to Disclose</u>. If, for any reason, the Obligor fails to provide the Audited Information or Annual Information as required by this Master Undertaking, the Obligor shall provide notice of such failure in a timely manner to EMMA or to the MSRB, in the form of the notice attached as <u>Exhibit D</u>.

Section 9. <u>Remedies</u>. (a) The purpose of this Master Undertaking is to enable the Underwriters to purchase the Obligations by providing for an undertaking by the Obligor in satisfaction of the SEC Rule. This Master Undertaking is solely for the benefit of (i) the Underwriters, and (ii) the Holders, and creates no new contractual or other rights for, nor can it be relied upon by, the SEC, underwriters, brokers, dealers, municipal securities dealers, potential customers, other Obligated Persons or any other third party. The sole remedy against the Obligor for any failure to carry out any provision of this Master Undertaking shall be for specific performance of the Obligor's disclosure obligations hereunder and not for money damages of any kind or in any amount or for any other remedy. The Obligor's failure to honor its covenants hereunder shall not constitute a breach or default of the Obligations or any other agreement to which the Obligor is a party and shall not give rise to any other rights or remedies.

(b) Subject to paragraph (e) of this Section 9, in the event the Obligor fails to provide any information required of it by the terms of this Master Undertaking, any holder of Obligations may pursue the remedy set forth in the preceding paragraph in any court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Indiana. An affidavit to the effect that such person is a holder of Obligations supported by reasonable documentation of such claim shall be sufficient to evidence standing to pursue this remedy.

(c) Subject to paragraph (e) of this Section 9, any challenge to the adequacy of the information provided by the Obligor by the terms of this Master Undertaking may be pursued only by holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of Obligations then outstanding in any court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Indiana. An affidavit to the effect that such persons are holders of Obligations supported by reasonable documentation of such claim shall be sufficient to evidence standing to pursue the remedy set forth in the preceding paragraph.

(d) If specific performance is granted by any such court, the party seeking such remedy shall be entitled to payment of costs by the Obligor and to reimbursement by the Obligor of reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys incurred in the pursuit of such claim. If specific performance is not granted by any such court, the Obligor shall be entitled to payment of costs by the party seeking such remedy and to reimbursement by such party of reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys incurred in the pursuit of such party of reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys incurred in the pursuit of such party of reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys incurred in the pursuit of such claim.

(e) Prior to pursuing any remedy for any breach of any obligation under this Master Undertaking, a holder of Obligations shall give notice to the Obligor and the respective issuer of each obligation, by registered or certified mail, of such breach and its intent to pursue such remedy. Thirty (30) days after the receipt of such notice, upon earlier response from the Obligor

to this notice indicating continued noncompliance, such remedy may be pursued under this Master Undertaking if and to the extent the Obligor has failed to cure such breach.

Section 10. <u>Additional Information</u>. Nothing in this Master Undertaking shall be deemed to prevent the Obligor from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Master Undertaking or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any Annual Information or notice of occurrence of a reportable event, in addition to that which is required by this Master Undertaking.

Modification of Master Undertaking. The Obligor may, from time to time, Section 11. amend or modify this Master Undertaking without the consent of or notice to the holders of the Obligations if either (a)(i) such amendment or modification is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law (including but not limited to a change in law which requires a change in the Obligor's policies or accounting practices) or change in the identity, nature or status of the Obligor, or type of business conducted, (ii) this Master Undertaking, as so amended or modified, would have complied with the requirements of the SEC Rule on the date hereof, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the SEC Rule, as well as any change in circumstances, and (iii) such amendment or modification does not materially impair the interests of the holders of the Obligations, as determined either by (A) nationally recognized bond counsel or (B) an approving vote of the holders of the Obligations pursuant to the terms of any Trust Indenture at the time of such amendment or modification; or (b) such amendment or modification (including an amendment or modification which rescinds this Master Undertaking) is otherwise permitted by the SEC Rule, as then in effect.

Section 12. <u>Interpretation Under Indiana Law</u>. It is the intention of the parties hereto that this Master Undertaking and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the law of the State of Indiana.

Section 13. <u>Severability Clause</u>. In case any provision in this Master Undertaking shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

Section 14. <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. All covenants and agreements in this Master Undertaking made by the Obligor shall bind its successors, whether so expressed or not.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Obligor has caused this Master Undertaking to be executed as of the day and year first hereinabove written.

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY, as Obligor

By:

Constance Feagans, President Board of Trustees

Sharon Goins, Secretary Board of Trustees

[Signature Page to Master Continuing Disclosure Undertaking]

EXHIBIT A

OBLIGATIONS

Full Name of Bond Issue	Base CUSIP	Final Maturity
Morgan County Public Library General Obligation Bonds of 2018	617221	January 15, 2031

EXHIBIT B

CERTIFICATE RE: [ANNUAL INFORMATION][AUDITED INFORMATION] DISCLOSURE

The undersigned, on behalf of the Morgan County Public Library, as the Obligor under the Master Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, dated as of October 25, 2018 (the "Master Agreement"), hereby certifies that the information enclosed herewith constitutes the [Annual Information][Audited Information] (as defined in the Master Agreement) which is required to be provided pursuant to Section 4(a) of the Master Agreement.

Dated: _____.

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

DO NOT EXECUTE – FOR FUTURE USE ONLY

EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATE RE: REPORTABLE EVENT DISCLOSURE

The undersigned, on behalf of the Morgan County Public Library, as Obligor under the Master Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, dated as of October 25, 2018 (the "Master Agreement"), hereby certifies that the information enclosed herewith constitutes notice of the occurrence of a reportable event which is required to be provided pursuant to Section 6 of the Master Agreement.

Dated: _____.

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

DO NOT EXECUTE – FOR FUTURE USE ONLY

EXHIBIT D

NOTICE TO MSRB OF FAILURE TO FILE INFORMATION

Notice is hereby given that the Morgan County Public Library (the "Obligor") did not timely file its [Annual Information][Audited Information] as required by Section 4(a) of the Master Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, dated as of October 25, 2018.

Dated:

MORGAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

DO NOT EXECUTE – FOR FUTURE USE ONLY

(This page intentionally left blank.)